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NOTICE
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Motice is hereby given that the Eighth Annual
Ceneral Meeting of the members of the company
will be held at Grand Hotel, M G Road, Cochin, on
Wednesday the 26" August 2015 at 11.00 am to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited
financial statements inciuding audited
consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the Financial Year ended 31" March
2015 together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Todeclare a dividend on Equity Shares.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Varghese
Kurian (DIN-01114947), who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

4, Toappoint a Director in place of Shri CK Menon
(DIN-01955233) who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

5. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Mohamed
Althaf (DIN-06409935) who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for
reappointment.

6. To consider and, if thought fit, approve with or
without modification (s) the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of
section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014,
including any statutory modification (5] or re-
enactments (s) thereof for the time being in
force, M/s Varma & WVarma, Chartered
Accountants [Firm Registration No.0045325),
be and are hereby appointed as Auditors of the
Company to hold office from the conclusion of
this Annual Ceneral Meeting till the conclusion of
the 11" annual general meeting of the Company
to be held in the year 2019 (subject to
ratification of their appointment at every
annual general meeting), at a remuneration of
Rs. 2 lacs per annum, exclusive of out of pocket
expenses, limited to Rs. 15,000/ - per annum or
any other amounts as may be fixed by the Board
of Directors of the Company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

7. To consider and if thought fit approve with or

without modification(s) the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuance to Section 152 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act 2015 read with Companies (
Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules 2014 ({including any statutory
modification|(s) or enactment(s) thereof for the
time being in force) ShriM M Abdul Basheer | DIN
: 00120916) who was appointed as an Additional
Director with effect from 20.02.2015 by the
Board of Directors of the Company and who in
terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013 holds office up to the date of this Annual
Ceneral Meeting and in respect of whom the
Company hasreceived anotice inwriting froma
member under section 160 of the Companies
Act 2013 proposing the candidature for the
office of director, be and is hereby appointed as
a Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable
toretire by rotation.

. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or

without modification{s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution;

RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the provisions of
gection 61 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (inciuding any
statutory modifications or reenactment
thereof for the time being in force) consent of
the Members be and is hereby accorded to sub-
divide each Equity Share of the Company having
Face value of Rs. 10,000/ - (Ten Thousand only)
into face value of Rs. 10/- (Ten only) each fully
paid-up and consequently the Authorised Share
Capital of the company of Rs.
Rs.200,00,00,000/- would comprise of
200000000 (Twenty crore) Eguity shares of
Rs. 10/- (Ten only) each with effect from the
“Record Date” to be determined by the Board
for this purpose.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of
Directors of the company be and is authorized
to take necessary steps for dematerilaisation
of the eguity shares of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorized to fix a Record Date and to
take such steps as may be necessary for
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obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or
otherwise, in relation to the above and to settle
all matters arising out of and incidental thereto,
and to execute all deeds, applications,
documents and writings that may be required,
on behalf of the company and generally to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things and to give
such directions as may be necessary, proper and
expedient or incidental for the purpose of
giving effect to this resolution.

RESOWVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and Is
hereby authorized to delegate all or any of its
powers to any Committee, Director and Officer
of the Company thereof as it may deem
appropriate in this regard.

. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
contained in Section 13, 61 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
(including any statutory madification(s),
amendment or re-enactment thereof), the
existing Clause V of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company be and is hereby
amended by deletion of the existing Clause ¥
and by substitution thereof by the following
clause;

V. The Authorized Share Capital of the company
is Rs.200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred
Core) divided into 200000000 (Twenty crore)
Equity Shares of RS0 /- (Rupees Ten }each with
the rights, privileges and conditions attached
hereto.’

10. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or

without modification(s), the following
resoiution as an Special Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 14 of the
Companies Act 2013, Article 5 (a) of the Articles
of Association of the company be altered by
substituting it with the Following new clause:;

5. a) The Authorized Share Capital of the
Company is Bs. 200, 00,00,000/- (Rupees Two
Hundred Crore] divided into 200000000
(Twenty crore) Equity Shares of Rs10 /- (Rupees
Ten) each with power to alter its Share Capital in
accordance with the provisions of Section 61 of
the Companies Act 2013, Subject to the
provisions of the Act or any statutory
moadification thereof, the Company will have

1.
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necessary authority to issue Share Capital with
voting rights or with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise In accordance
with such rules and subject to such conditions as
may be prescribed.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification{s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act 2013 including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof, or any
other law and subject to such consent(s),
approval(s) and permission(s) as may be
necessary in this regard and subject to such
conditions as may be impased by any authority
while granting such consent(s), approvals(s} and
permission(s) and as are agreed by the
Board/Committee of Directors consent of the
company be and is hereby accorded to the
appointment of Mr. T Balakrishnan as Managing
Director of the company for a period from
0111.2014 up to the conclusion of this Annual
Ceneral Meeting being held on 26.08.2015.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of
giving effect to the abowve Resolutions, the
Board be and is hereby authorised on behalf of
the Company to do all acts, deeds, matters and
things as it may at its discretion deem
necessary, proper and desirable for such
purpose and give such directions as may be
necessary and to finalise and execute all
documents and writings as may be necessary.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri T Balakrishnan,
Managing Director, be paid remuneration, as
fixed by the Remuneration Committee, subject
to the maximum limit as prescribed under Part |l
of Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013
depending on the paid up capital, with due
fulfilment of prescribed procedures;
encashment of unavailed leave at the end of the
tenure, reimbursement of medical expenses as
per rules of the Company and gratuity at a rate
not exceeding half a month's salary for each
completed year of service.

RESOWED FURTHER  THAT the Board of
Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to determine, alter or vary the terms
and conditions of the said remuneration
package from time to time in such manner as
may be agreed upon between the Board and
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Shri T Balakrishnan, adhering to such statutory
compliances from time to time as may be
required, and to give effect to the foregoing
Resolution, or as may be otherwise considered
by it to be in the best interest of the Company
and that the Board be and is hereby authorized
to file application and necessary forms with the
Registrar of Companies and to do such other
acts, deeds, matters and things asin its absolute
discretion as it may consider necessary,
expedient or desirable, and to settle any

31.07.2015
Cochin

Notes:

1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting (the "Meeting™) may
gppoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll
instead of himself and the proxy need not be a
member of the Company. The instrument
appointing the proxy should, however, be
deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than Forty-elght hours
before the commencement of the Meeting,

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the
total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint 2
single person as proxy and such person shall not
act as a proxy for any other person or
sharehelder.

A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special
Business to be transacted at the Meeting is
annexed hereto.

Members are requested to hand owver the
enclosed attendance slip, duly signed in
accordance with their specimen signature (s)
registered with the Company for admission to
the meeting hall where the Annual General
Meeting is proposed to be held.

Dividend recommended by the Board of
Directors, If approved by the members at the
Annual General Meeting will be paid after the

. Members may note that
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expedient or desirable, and to settle any
guestion, or doubt that may arise In relation
thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr T Balakrishnan be
allowed to draw the remuneration as
recommended by the Remuneration
Committee on monthly, yearly or as terminal
benefits, subject to the limits specified by the
Remuneration Committee & the norms under
Part | of Schedule V of the Companies Act.

By Order of the Board

sd/ -
K Padmadasan
Company Secretary

27" August 2015  to those members whose
names appear on the Company's Register of
Members as on 26" August 2015. Those who
have not fumished the bank account details
with the company may please send your bank
details to deptcs@inkelkerala.com for
remittance of dividend.

dividends not
encashed or claimed within seven years and 30
days from the date of declaration of the
dividend, will, as per Section 124 read with
Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013, be
transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund of Covernment of India. A few
members have not encashed their dividend
pertaining to the dividend declared for the
financial year ended 31" March 2010 and 31"
March 2014, Members who wish to claim
dividends, which remain unclaimed, are
requested to correspond with the company. It
may be noted that once the amounts in the
unpaid dividend account are transferred to the
I[EPF, no claim shall lie against the IEFF or the
Company in respect thereof and the Members
would lose their right to claim such dividend.

. Members who have not registered their e-mail

addresses so far, are requested to register their
e-mail address for receiving all communication
including Annual Report, Motices, Circulars, etc.
from the Company electronically.

As a measure of austerity, copies of the annual
report will not be distributed at the annual
general meeting. Members are therefore
requested to bring their copies of the annual
report to the Meeting.
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("the Act”)

The following Statement sets out all material facts
relating to the Special Business mentioned In the
accompanying Notice;

Item No.7

Shri M M Abdul Basheer was appointed as an
additional director of the company on 207
February 2015 by the Board of Directors of the
company. According to the provisions of section
161 of the Companies Act 2013, he holds office as
director only up to the date of the ensuing Annual
Ceneral Meeting. As required by section 160 of the
Act, a notice has been received from a member
signifying his intention to propose appointment of
Shri MM Abdul Basheer as a Director along with a
deposit of Rs. 1,00,000/-. The Board considers it
desirable that the company should continue to avall
itself of his services.

Except, Shri M M Abdul Basheer no other directors
of the company are concerned or interested in the
proposed resolution.

[temMNo. 8.9 and 10

The present face value of equity shares of the
Company is Rs. 10,000/~ . With a view to increase
the liquidity of the equity shares of the Company
and also to allan ourselves with IPO requirements
and taking into account the proposal with the Govt.
of Kerala for merger of subsidiaries with INKEL , the
Board of Directors at its meeting held on 5" June
2015 has approved to sub-divide the nominal value
of the equity share capital of the company from Ks.
10,000/ - per share to Rs10/- per share subject to
the approval of the members. Accordingly, each
paid up equity share of nominal value of Rs.
10,000/- each of the company, existing on the
Record date as may be fixed by the Board of
Directors, shall stand sub divided inte 200000000
(Twenty crore) Equity Shares of Rs10/- (Rupees
Ten) each The Record Date for the aforesaid Sub
Division of the equity shares will be fixed by the
Board of Directors after the approval of the
shareholders s obtained, pursuant to this Annual
Ceneral Meeting.

At present, the Authorised Share Capital of the
Company is Es. 200, 00,00,000/- (Rupees Two
Hundred Crore} divided into 200000 (two lacs)
Equity Shares of Rs10,000 /- (Rupees Ten
Thousand) each, The issued, subscribed and paid up
capital of the Company is divided into 163027
equity shares of Rs, 10,000/~ each amounting to
Rs. 163,02,70,000/-.

INKEL Limited

The proposed sub division of equity shares of the
Company from RsA0,000/- [Rupees Ten thousand
only) per Equity share to Bs10/-{Rupees Ten only)
per equity share, requires aiteration of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company. Accordingly, Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association 5(a) of Articles of
Association is proposed to be altered in the manner
set out in Resolution at ltem No.8 and 9,

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions
under item Nos. 7, 8 and 9 of the notice for approval
of the Members,

The Directors /key managerial personnel of the
Company or their respective relatives are deemed
to be concerned or interested in the Resolutions
mentioned at item No. 8,9&10 of the Motice only to
the extent of shares held by them, if any, in the
Camipany.

[tem MNo.1

In accordance with provisions of Section 169 of the
Companies Act 2013 appointment of Managing
Director requires members' approval

Based on the recommendations of the
Remuneration Committee, your Directors have
proposed to appoint Mr.T Balakrishnan as Managing
Director of the company for a period from
0111.2014 up to the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting to be held on or before
50.09.2015.

The information as reguired under Clause (iv) of
Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies
Act, 2013, is furnished below:

. Generalinformation:

INKEL is a8 public-private partnership venture
promoted by Government of Kerala in the year
2007. The company is primarily established with
its objects to promote, set-up, operate
maintain, sell or otherwise deal in all or any
infrastructure facilities, projects and ventures
Including but not limited to Special Economic
Zones, Industrial Parks or Estates, roads, rail and
other transport facilities and all or any related
infrastructure facilities. It will also act as a key
link between Kerala Covernment and the private
sector in facilitating development of
infrastructure,

During the yvear 2014-15 the company has made
a net profit of Rs. 1037 lacs and the company
has not made any foreign investments or
collaborations.
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Il. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE:
Background details;

Mr T Balakrishnan, a post graduate in Political
Sclence & International Relations and joined the
Indian Administrative Service in 1980 and held the
positions of District Collector,
Thiruvananthapuram, Regional Director America
Covt. of India Tourist Office New York, Deputy
Director General Ministry of Tourism Govt. of India,
Mew Delhi (1985-99), Secretary, Local Self Govt,
Dept., Urban Development Dept. Secretary, Culture
& Chairman, Kerala Water Authority(1993-01),
Secretary, Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Department (2001-04), Exciser Commissioner
(2004-05) and retired as Additional Chief Secretary
on3140.2011.

Remuneration proposed

1.  Anannual remuneration of Rs.36 Lakhs

2. Cratuity not exceeding 15 days salary for
every year of completed service.

3. Encashment of unavailed Leave, limited to
Z0 days per year of service or
proportionate thereof.

4, Medical reimbursement, as available to an
employee of the Company.

Annual Report
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Under the stewardship of Mr T Balakrishnan, the
Company has moved forward and the two projects
at Angamall and Malappuram were launched soon
after he took over and these were completed in
record time.

The Board recommends the resolution for
appointment as per the terms given In the
resolution and payment of remuneration as
proposed in the Resoclution. None of the other
Directors of the Company, are in any way
concerned or interested in this resolution.

ll. Other Information

1. Reasons for loss or inadequate profits: The
profit generated this year is much higher as
compared to previous year but fell short of our
expectation. However since several projects areon
hand, the profitability is likely to register a much
higher graph.

IV. DISCLOSURE:

The shareholders of the Company shall be informed
of the remuneration package of the managerial
person,
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Dear Members,

G
-/
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 8" Annual Report of your Company, for the financial year ended

March 31, 2015,

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Financial performance of your Company, for the year ended March 31, 2015 is summarized bEIDTEs_ nlacs)
201415 201314

Total income 4541.91 1593.63

Total expenditure 277817 804.54

Profit before Depreciation & Tax 1763.74 78910

Less : Depreciation 180.07 221.25

Profit before Tax 1583.67 56785

Less : Tax 555.36 184.69
L\h!?rafit for the year 1028.31 38316 y
The highlights of the Company's performance are The financial performance of each of the

asunder:

Income from operations for the yvear 2014 -15i5Rs
3.34965 lakh as against Fs. 635.54 lakh for the
previous year. The increase is mainly due to giving
on long lease of space at INKEL Tower - | Angamaly
and INKEL Greens Malappuram.

There is substantial increase in Other Income as
well. The increase is mainly out of Inter corporate
advance and Interest on OCCD. However, Interest
on FD dueto investment in subsidiaries & JVs have
registered a decrease, clearly pointing a shift
towards the changing profile of the Company since
large funds are being deployed on projects.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements of your
Company for the financial year 2014-2015 are
prepared in compliance with applicable provisions
of the Companies Act 2013 and Accounting
Standards. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on the basis of audited
financial statements of the Company, its
subsidiaries and associate companies, as approved
by their respective Board of Directors.

subsidiaries and joint venture companies included
in the consolidated financial statements of your
Company Is set out in the Annexure to this Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

A separate statement containing the salient
features of financlal statements of all subsidiaries
of your company forms part of consolidated
financial statements in compliance with Section
129 and other applicable provisions, If any, of the
Companies Act 2013. The financial statements
including the consolidated financial statements,
financial statement of subsidiaries and all other
documents required to be attached to this report
have been uploaded on the website of vour
Company, www.inkelin. Any member desirous of
cbtaining a copy of the said financial statements
may write to the Company Secretary at the
Registered Office of your Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company Is Bs.
200, 00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Crore)
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divided into 200000 (twao lacs) Equity Shares of
Rs10,000 /- (Rupees Ten Thousandleach. The
lssued, subscribed and paid up capital of the
Company is divided into 163027 equity shares of Rs,
10,000/ - each amounting to Rs. 163,02,70,000/-,

With a view to increase the liquidity of the equity
shares of the Company and taking into account the
proposal with the Govt. of Kerala for merger of
subsidiaries with INKEL, your directors' proposes to
sub-divide the nominal value of the equity share
capital of the company. Moreover, in the not so
distant future, INKEL may be going for an IPO. At
that point of time, face value of the shares will in
any case have to be aligned to the listing
requirements. The proposal is to sub-divide the
shares from Rs10,000/- per share to Rs10/- per
share subject to the approval of the members.

OPERATIONS
Angamaly

A total of 30 acres on lease from KSIDC is being
developed jointly by vour Company and its
subsidiary INKEL- KSIDC Prajects Limited (INKID), On
5.55 acres of land leased to the Company by INKID
at Angamaly , the first project of the Company
INKEL Tower |, with 2 lac square feet, was
commissioned in 2013, The space has been leasad
to different units, both manufacturing and service
and many of them are operational and the rest are
awaiting commissioning. The second project in the
remaining land, Tower |, with a total plinth area of
24000 Sgm is scheduled to be commissioned during
the current financial year, The estimated project
cost for Tower llisRs. 42 Crores.

In the larger plot of remaining 22 acres, it Is
proposed to develop a business park with a total
area of 2.5 million square feet. The Business Park is
expected to meet the ever growing demands of
segments like IT/ITES, BPO's, Education, Skill
Development, Fnancial Institutions, Data Centers,
Office Space and the like, with all infrastructure
facilities. The business park will be developed jointly
by your Company and selected co-developers.

Inkel Greens Malappuram

An area of 168 acres at Malappuram on lease from
KSIDC is being developed jointly by your Company
and INKID. Your Company's first project of Small and
Medium Industries Park was commissioned in 2011,
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In the SME Park set up by the Company in 50,000
s0.ft, factories employing around 400 workmen are
in operation. Another 18 small and medium
enterprises are setting up units in the SME Park and
construction activities are going on,

The Company has tied up with a total of 23 Units,
both educational and industrial, for development
of projects and most of them have either started
operations or are under construction.

In the Education Zone, INKEL NTTF Training Center
fs fully functional in 40,000 sq.ft. area offering
100% Job oriented diploma programs to around
350 students whichis expected to reach 750 by this
year end,

Container Freight Station

The Container Freight Station at Vallarpadam has
been in full fledoed operation since February 2014,
The Operations and Management of the facility Is
handled by APM Terminals India Private Limited.
The facllity Is yet to register substantial revenue as
to cover repayment of debt and servicing of debts
for the project. Though the CF5S has the major
share of the business in Cochin, due to the less than
gxpected performance level of the Container
Terminal, the revenue earned so far are much
below the prolections. However, the business
seems to be picking up and going by the projections
by the APMT, the performance would show
substantial improvement before the end of this
financial year.

During the year, the Company has subscribed to the
issue of preference shares by MIV Logistics Private
Limited to the extent of Bs1.97 crores.

Thampanoor project

A Special Purpose Vehicle by name and style "INKES
Trade Centre Limited' has been incorporated for
implementation of the project. Lease agreement
for 1.26 acres of land at Thampanoor,
Thiruvananthapuram, has been conciuded,

Bridge Project

A Bridge which will connect Willingdon Island,
Cochin, to Kannangattu across Kumbalam Kavyal, at
a8 project cost of Rs 73 crore is now under
implementation. The technical partner for the
project is M/s Seguro Foundations & Structures
Private Limited. Total span of the bridage is to be
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622m. The project is expected to be completed
before March 2016. The project is being
implemented by a Limited Liability Partnership of
INKEL and Seguro.

Palakkad Project

The company has finalized purchase of a land parcel
at Palakkad for development. The company is
working on formulating ideal projects for this
location.

Piravom Project

Your Company own around 5 acres at Piravom, in
Ernakulam District. Pending finalization of a suitable
project, at this location, a pllot project for hi-tech
agriculture is being implemented.

Petcoke project

Government of Kerala proposes to establish a Pet
coke based Power Plant at Cochin. INKEL has been
given the permission for implementation of the
project under Swiss Challenge and Case |l bidding
route. INKEL has submitted Preliminary Project
Reports to the Government to facilitate a decision
on selection of appropriate technology/
technologies and to initiate further steps for
Implementation of Power Project. A final decision
on the project is awaited from the Government.

Consultancy

Business portfolic of the Company includes
advisory services and project management
services, These are being rendered to subsidiary
and associate companies as well as to government
departments, autonomous organizations and Local
Self Covernment departments including Palakkad
Municipality, Kerala Veterinary University, and
Treasuries Department

NEW PROJECTS

During the financial year 2015-16 the Company
proposes to enter into new areas of business
including (i) HI-Tech Agriculture at locations where
development activities are yet to start, (i) Solar
Energy and (iil} Facilities Management.

These diversifications offer good opportunities to
the company to eam additional revenue with
minimal capital investment but making use of the
existing infrastructure and manpower resources.

INKEL Limited

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Your Directors state that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts
for the year ended March 31, 2015, the
applicable accounting standards read with
reguirements set out under Schedule Il to
the Act, have been followed and there are
namaterial departures from the same;

b} the Directors have selected such
accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent
50 as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2015 and of the profit of the Comparny
for the vear ended on that date:;

c) the Directors have taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual
accounts on a'going concern' basis;

e] the Directors have lald down internal
financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and are operating
gffectively; and

f) the Directors have devised proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions
entered by the Company with related parties were
in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's
length basis. During the year, the Company had not
entered into any contract / arrangement /
transaction with related parties which could be
considered material in accordance with the policy
of the Company on materiality of related party
transactions.
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Your Directors draw attention of the members to
Mote 2.25 to the financial statement which sets out
related party disclosures.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has
formulated and recommended to the Board, a
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy)
indicating the activities to be undertaken by the
Company, which has been approved by the Board.
The Company proposed to commence its CSR
activities by setting a bus shelter at Malappuram to
cater to the requirements of rural population. No
amount could be spent during the previous
financial year since a project which would benefit
the most could be identified only at the end of the
previous year.

During the FY 2015-16, the Company proposes to
undertake CSR activities in sclar energy, sanitation
and others, to the benefit of economically and
socially backward population. The Company would
also undertake other need based initiatives in
compliance with Schedule VIl to the Act. During the
FY 2015-16, it is proposed to spend Bs. 1.85lakhs on
CSR activities.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

Resignation

During the Financial Year 2014-15, Dr, P Mohamed
Ali, Director, resigned from the Board. The Board
place on record its appreciation of the valuable
contribution by Dr. Mohamed Ali, during his
assoclation, which dates back to the formative
years, with the Company.

Retirement

Mr. Tom Jose is retiring at this general meeting and
is not seeking re-election. The Board place on
record appreciation of the valuable services
renderad by Mr Tom Jose as a Director.

Appointment
During the Financial Year, Shri M M Abdul Basheer,

was appointed as Additional Director of vour
Company. ShriM M Abdul Basheer is proposed tobe
appointed as a Non Executive Director of your
Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Your Directors recommend his appointment as a
Mon Executive Director of your Company.
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Further, in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 149, 152, S5chedule IV and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 read
with Companies [ Appointment and Qualifications
of Directors) Rules 2014, at an Extra Ordinary
General meeting held on 27" March 2015 Mr. P
Mandakumaran and Mrs. Pamela Anna Mathew
were appointed as Independent Directors on the
Board to hold office upto 2 vears. le upto March
2017

Re-appointment
Mr. Varghese Kurian, Mr. C K Menon and Mr

Mohamed Althaf are liable to retire at the ensuing
Annual Ceneral Meeting pursuant to the provisions
of Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013 read
with the Companies | Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 and the
Articles of Association of your Company and being
eligible, have offered themselves for
reappointment. Appropriate resolutions for their
re-appointment are being placed for your approval
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Your
Directors recommend their reappointment as non
Executive Directors of your Company,

Managing Director

On the recommendations of the Board, Mr T
Balakrishnan was appointed as Managing Director
of the Company with effect from 0111.2011 for a
term of 3 years, by the members at the Annual
General Meeting held on 6" September 2013. The
Board at its meeting held on the 5" June 2015 has
recommended appolntment of Mr T Balakrishnan
as Managing Director on the same terms and
conditions, subject to approval by the members up
to the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. A resolution seeking approval of the
members for appointment of Mr T Balakrishnan
from 0111.2014 till the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting has been circulated for
consideration and approval by the members.

As per the Articles of Association of the Company,
nomination to the position of Managing Director is
the prerogative of the Government of Kerala. The
Company is awaiting Orders of the Covernment of
Kerala with regard to Appointment of Managing
Director.

Key Managerial Personnel
Shri T Balakrishnan, Managing Director, Shri K
Padmadasan, Company Secretary and Shri George
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Raphael, General Manager ( Finance & Accounts)
are the key managerial personnel of your Company
in accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies |
Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules 2014,

Declaration of Independence

Your Company has received declarations from the
two Independent Directors confirming that they
meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed
under the provisions of the Companies Act 2013
read with the schedules and rules issued
thereunder.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT

M/s. Varma & Varma Statutory Auditors hold office
until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and are eligible for reappointment. Their
appointment, if made, will be in accordance within
the limits specified in the Act.

The Notes on financial statement referred toin the
Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further comments. The Auditors'
Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark,

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Board has appeointed M/s. Copi Mohan,
Satheesan & Associates, Practising Company
Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the
financial year 2014-15. The Secretarial Audit Report
for the financial year ended March 31, 2015 is
annexed herewith marked as Annexure V to this
Report. The Practicing Company Secretary has
made observation with regard to the appointment
of the Managing Director, appointment of
Additional Director, appointment of KMP of a
Company as Director by another Company and
authorization given to Managing Director for
finalization of Board's report. The Board has the
following comments to of fer,

The extension of terms of appointment of
Managing Director was approved by the Board at its
Meeting held on 5 June 2015. Since the terms and
conditions of appointment is subject to approval by
the General Meeting of the company, necessary
returns can be filed with the Registrar of
Companies, after approval by the Members. The

INKEL Limited

return will be filed once the members approve the
appointment at the ensuing annual general
meeting.

The Additional Director indeed had made the
disclosure at the relevant meeting as confirmed by
the Board at the subseguent meeting.
Appointment of KMP on the Board of another
company has been taken note off at the
subseguent meeting of the Board.

The authorization for finalization of Board's report
was given to MD on the basis of a basic draft
perused by the Board.

DISCLOSURES:
CSR Committee

The CSE Committee comprises Mr. Varghese Kurian
{Chairman), Mr. MM Abdul Basheer and Mr.P Nanda
Kumaran as members.

Audit Committee

The company has an adequately qualified Audit
Committes. The Committee consists of Director
Mr. C V Rappai, Independent Directors Mr. P
Mandakumaran and Mrs. Pamela Anna Mathew as
members with the Managing Director, 3 other
Directors, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors
as permanent invitees, The Committee reviews the
organisation's financial reporting process,
disclosure of financial Information, annual financial
statements and adeguacy of internal control
systems. The Committee met 4 times during the
period under review,

Meetings of the Board

Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held
during the year. For further details, please refer
report on Corporate Governance of this Annual
Report.

Particulars of Loans given, Investments made,
Guarantees given and Securities provided

During the year under review the company has
neither given any loan, made any investments .
However the company has provided guarantee for
the loan taken by Seguro - INKEL Consortium LLP
after complying with the provisions of the
Companies Act,
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Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo

The particulars relating to conservation of energy,
technology absorption, foreign exchange earmings
and outgo, as required to be disclosed under the
Act, are provided in Annexure to this Report.

Extract of Annual Return
Extract of Annual Return of the Company Is
annexed herewith to this Report.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting
is required in respect of the following items as
there were no transactions on these items during

the yvear under review:
1. Detalls relating to deposits covered under
Chapter V of the Act.

2, Issue of equity shares with differential
rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity
shares) to employees of the Company
under any scheme
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4, the Managing Director has not received
any remuneration or commission from any
of its subsidiaries,

5. No significant or material orders were
passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which Impact the going concemn
status and Company's cperationsin future.

Your Directors further state that during the year
under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to express their sincere
appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
received from the financial institutions, banks,
Cowvernment authorities, customers, vendors and
members during the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T Balakrishnan M M Abdul Basheer
Manaaging Director Director
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ANNEXURE -1

CORPORATE COVERNANCE REPORT

1. Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance
The Company's philosophy of Corporate Governance is oriented towards achieving efficient conduct of its
business, meeting its obligations to stakeholders with transparency, accountability and integrity as the
pillars

2. Board of Directors
il  Composition and size of the Board:
The present strength of Board of Directors is 12, The details of the directors as at March 31, 2015 s

given below:
Name of Director Type of Directorship
Ehri PK, Kunhalikutty Chairman, Gok nominee
Shri T Balakrishnan Managing Director, Gok nominge
Shri PH.Kurian IAS Mon Executive Director, Gok Nominee
Shri Tom Jose 1AS Non Executive Director
Shri C.K Menon MNon Executive Director
Shri Varghese Kurian MNon Executive Director
shri CV.Rappai Mon Executive Director
shri Siddeek Ahmed Haiji Panatharayil MNon Executive Director
shri Mohamed Althaf MNon Executive Director
Shri M M Abdul Basheer Additional Director
Shri P Nandakumaran Independent Director
\_Smt. Pamela Anna Mathew Independent Director %3

(i) Board, Ceneral Meetings & Attendance
The details of attendance of the directors at the Board and Annual General Meeting are given

below:
(" Name of Director No. of Meetings held | No.of Meetings | Presence at the )
during the period the attended last AGM
was on the Board
Director
Shri PK. Kunhalikutty 4 3 -
Shri T Balakrishnan 4 4 YES
Shri PH.Kurian |AS 4 3
Shri Tom Jose I1AS 4 1
Shri C.K.Menon 4 2
Shri Varghese Kurian 4 3 -
Shri C.V.Rappal 4 4 YES
Shiri Siddeek Ahmed Haji Panatharayil 4 1 -
Shri Mohamed Althaf 4 3 YES
Shri M M Abdul Basheer 1 1 YES
Shri P Nandakumaran MNIL NA
M‘Smt. Famela Anna Mathew MIL MNA r
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3. Internal Audit And Compliance

The Company conducts its internal audit and compliance functions within the parameters of regulatory
framework. The internal audit function is being carried out by an external firm of chartered accountants
andtheir quarterly reports are reviewed on quarterly basis by the Audit committee, which issues
appropriate recommendations and directions as may be necessary.

The Audit Committee reviews the performance of the audit and compliance functions, the effectiveness of

caontrols and compliance with regulatory guidelines and gives such directions to the Management as
necessary/considered appropriate,

ANNEXURE - 11

CONSERVATION OF ENERCY

The operations of the Company involve low energy consumption. Adequate measures have however been taken
to conserve eneray.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

The Company uses the latest technologies for improving the productivity of its human resources and quality of
its services.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Specific areas in which R&D was carried out by the Company.

The Company is into development and implementation of Infrastructure Projects. These projects are still to
attain commercial Implementation. Owver the years, the Company proposes to derive benefit out of this
exposure and identify potential areas where research is necessary.

BENEFITS DERIVED

As of now, nil.

FUTURE PLAN OF ACTION

The Company will develop collaborative solutions, including identifying areas where cost reduction and higher
productivity could be attained.
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2015

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
{(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

|. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
- '
1. CIM U45209KL2007PLCO20471
2. Reagistration Date 09.03.2007
3. Name of the Company INKEL Limited
4. Category/Sub-category of
the Company Closely held public Company limited by shares
5. Address of the Registered INKEL LIMITED, Inkel Centre, Vallathol Junction, Seaport Airport
office & contact details Road, Thrikkakara, Cochin - 682021,
Ph: 0484 - 6491138, Fax : 0484-2577941
B. Whether listed company Unlisted
7 Name, Address & contact
details of the Registrar &
\ Transfer Agent, if any. NA y
ll. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
5. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
Mo.| products / services Product/service of the company
1 | Infrastructural projects 45 100% J
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
SN | Name & address of the CIN Holding/subsidiary/| Applicable
company Associate section
1 | INKEL-KSIDC Projects Limited U74900KL2010PLCO25553 | Subsidiary 2087
2 | INKEL-KINFRA Infrastructure
Projects Limited U74900KL2010PLCO25556 | Subsidiary 2(87 i)
3 MIV Logistics Private Limited Ue30M12KL201MPTCO28839 | Associate 2(6)
4 Thalikulam PURA Private Limited | U45100KL2012PTCO30590 | Subsidiary 2187
5 | Tirurangadi PURA Private Limited | U45100KL2012PTC0O30589 | Subsidiary 2(87)il)
B INKES Trade Centre Limited U45400KL2014PLCO3766E | Subsidiary 2087
g 7. | Seguro - INKEL Consortium LLP | AAD-1041 Agsociate 2(6)
o
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V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
Name of shareholders No. of shares held
Covt. of Kerala 40500
Govt. Companies 12000
Directors / Relatives of Directors 67217
Foreign Holdings 22000
Banks & Corporate Holdings 8700
Others 12610

\ TOTAL 163027

Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
MIL

V) INDEBTEDNESS -indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment,

Secured Loan Unsecured Loans Deposits Total
excluding deposits Indebtedness
L NIL )

VL. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A.Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Amount (Rs)

SN.| Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD
T Balakrishan

1 Gross salary

(a} Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 36,00,000

(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option NIL
z Sweat Equity MNIL

4 Commission
- as%of profit

- others, specify... MIL
5 Others, please specify MNA
Total 26,00,000

Ceiling as per the Act 48,00,000
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANACER/WTD

Amount (Rs)

SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
cs CFO Total

1 | Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 10,359,968 12,04,957 22,44925

(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961 2 =

(c} Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961 -

2 | Stock Option -

3 | Sweat Equity 2

4 | Commission - R

- as % of profit - -

others, specify.. -

5 | Others, please specify

Total 10,39,968 12,04,957 22,44,925 2

Vil. PEMALTIES / PUMISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
¢ B
Type Section of the | Brief Details of Penalty / | Authority Appeal made,

Companies Description | Punishment/ [RD / NCLT/ if any
Act Compounding COLURT] (give Details)
fees imposed

A, COMPANY : NIL

B. DIRECTORS : NIL

\ C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT ML y
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2015

To,

The Members,
INKEL Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by
IMKEL Limited (herginafter called the company)
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns flled and other
records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that
in our opinion, the company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31
March, 2015 complied with the statutory provisions
and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter.

The Company Is not a listed entity and therefore,
the Securities and Exchanges Board of India Act,
1992 and various regulations made there under are
not applicable to the Company.

We have examined the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by INKEL Limited for the financial year
ended on 31 March, 2015 according to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and
the rules made there under and the other laws
applicable to the Company;

During the period under review the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Eules,
Cuidelines, etc. mentioned above subject to the
following observations:

4. There-appointment of Managing Director of
the Company with effect from
01/11,/2014 was approved by the Board at  its
meeting held on 05/06/2015 on
remuneration and perquisites as
recommended by the remuneration
committee, The Company Is yet to file the
prescribed returns regarding the re-
appointment with the concerned
authorities.

2.  During the period under review, one of the
Director of the Company resigned from
the post of Director whichwasaccepted by
the Board As per the provisions of the
section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the resignation of the Director and his
vacation along with that of an Alternate
Director is effective. In our opinion the
form filed by the Company in this regard
including appointment of Additional
Director is not proper, The proceedings of the
meeting also does not take note of the
disclosure of interest of additional director as
required from the date of such acceptance
under section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013,

3. As per section 203 of the Act, the Key
Managerial Perscnnel can be appointed as
Director of any other company only with the
permission of the Board of Directors. The
Managing Director of the Company has been
appointed as Director in some other
companies without complying with the above
requirement,

4. The Board of Directors at their meeting held
on 320/05/2014 have authorized two
directors, including Managing Director, to
approve the Board's Report which in our
opinion is not in conformity with the
provisions of section 179 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

In respect of other laws like Acts relating to
employee and labour regulations, welfare and
connected activities, specifically applicable to
the Company, we have relied on information/
records produced by the Company during the
course of our audit and the reporting is
limited to that extent.

We further report that:

The following Rules issued under the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company during
the financial year 2014-15:

1. Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 as the Company has
notissued any shares or other securities,
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2. Companies (lssue of Clobal Depository
Receipts) Rules, 2014 as the Company has
not issued any Clobal Depository Receipts.

3. Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Eules, 2014 except the splitting and
transfer of shares.

4, Companies {Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 as the Company has not
accepted any deposits.

5. Companies (Remistration of Charges)
Rules, 2014 as the Company has not
created any charges on the assets of the
Company.

6. Companies (Inspection, investigation and
inguiry) Rules, 2014 as no inspection or
investigation were ordered on the affairs
of the Company.

The Company has complied with the following
Rules, lssued under the Companies Act, 2013

1.  Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014,

2. Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

3. Companies (Declaration and Payment of
Dividend)Rules, 2014,

4. Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

5. Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014

6. Companies [Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) 2014 subject to the
observation in paragraph No. 2 above.
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7. Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 subject to the observation in
paragraph No. 4 above,

8. Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 subject
to the observation in paragraph Mo, 1 above.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with Independent Directors. The
changes In the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act subject to the observation in
paragraph No. 2 above.

Adeguate notice is given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions taken at the Board Meetinas were
properly captured and recorded in the minutes,

We further report that there are scope for
improving the systems and processes in the
company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

For Gopimohan Satheesan & Associates
K. P. Copimohan,

Partner
Piace: Ernakulam FCS No.: 7110
Date: 10/06/2015 CPNo: 2912
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INKEL Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The Members of Inkel Limited

Thrikkakara
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone
financlal statements of Inkel Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
Z1st March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss
and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for
theStandalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judaments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraudor error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on

thesestandalone financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers Internal
financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
Expressing an opinion on whether the Company has
in place an adeguate Internal financial control
system over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, An audit also
includes ewvaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by Company's
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalonefinancial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at




INKEL Limited

March 31, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for
the yvear ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1

As reguired by the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Covernment of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure
a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we
report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit,

{b} Inour opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

{c)] The Balance Sheet, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, and the Cash Fiow
Statement dealt with by this Report arein
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid
standalonefinancial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Bules,
2014,
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e} On the basis of the written
representations received from the
directors as on 31st March, 2015 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors is disqualified as on31st
March, 2015 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act,

(f) With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Eule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 2.30 to the
standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-
term contracts, including derivative
contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

fi. There were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

Place: Kochi-19
Date: 05.06.2015
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(a) The Company Is maintaining proper
records showing full particulars including
guantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.

(b) We are informed that major items of the
fixed assets have been physically verified by
the management during the year, which, in
our opinion is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its
business and that no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification,

(a) The inventory comprises of only land and
building. We are informed that the inventory
has been physically verified by the
management during the vear. In our opinion,
the freguency of such verification is
reasanable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the
explanations given to us, the procedures for
physical verification of inventory followed by
the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business,

{c) In our opinion and according to the
information and explanation given to us, the
Company s maintaining proper records of
Inventory and no material discrepancies were
noticed on physical verification by the
management.

(a) The company has granted loans to three
companies and one limited liability
partnership covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act,2013(" the Act”).

(b) In case of the above loans, as per the
information and explanations given to us, the
terms do not stipulate any repayment
schedule and the principal/interest are
repayable on demand. The parties have been
regular in repayment of the demands raised
by the Company.

(ciThere are no overdue amounts of more
than rupees one lakh in respect of the loans
granted to the parties coverad in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act.

INKEL Limited

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us,
there is an adequate internal control system
commensurate with the size of the Company
and nature of |ts business for the purchase of
inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of
inventory and services. During the course of
our audit, we have neither come across nor
have we been informed of any continuing
fallure to correct major weaknesses in the
internal control systems.

The Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public during the year and hence,
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according
to the information and explanations given to
us, the Central Covernment has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under Section 148 (1) of the Act for the
company at thisstage.

(a) As per the information and explanations
furnished to us and according to our
examination of the records of the Company,
except for minor delays in depositing Warks
Contract Tax, the Company has been
generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employee's State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax , Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax , Cess and other
statutory dues as applicable to the Company
with the appropriate authorities during the
year.

There are no arrears of undisputed statutory
dues outstanding at the last day of the
financial year for a period of more than six
months from the date on which they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and

explanations given to us and the records of

the Company examined by us, the following

disputed amounts of buillding tax demanded

have not been deposited with the authorities

gs E?:t 31st March, 2015 as per the detalls given
20w,
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Name of the Statute | Nature of Dues Amount Year to Which Forum Where
Amount Relates Dispute Is Pending
The Kerala Building The High Court of Kerala,
Tax Act 1975 Building Tax 28,565,835 2013-2014 Ernakulam

(c) As per the information and explanations
furnished tous by the management, there are
no amounts to be deposited towards Investor
Education and Protection Fund and hence the
reporting requirements under clauses (vil) (c)
of the paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable.

Logistics Private Limited. In our opinion, the
terms and conditions on which such
guarantees have been given are not prima
facie prejudicial to the interests of the
company.

M. According to the information and

explanations given to us and the records of

B. The Company does not have any accumulated the Company examined by us, the Company
losses at the end of the financial year and the has not avalled any term loan and hence
company has not incurred cash losses in the reporting requirements under clause (xi) of
financial year and in the immediately paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.
preceding financial year,

During the course of our examination of the

9. According to the information and books and records of the Company, carried
explanations given to us and the records of out in accordance with the generally accepted
the Company examined by us, the Company auditing practices in India, and according to
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to the information and explanations glven to us,
banks, we have neither come across any instance of

material fraud on or by the Company, noticed

10. According to the information and or reported during the year, nor have we been

explanations given to us and as stated in Note
No.2.30 to the financial statements, the
Company has given irrevocable and
unconditional corporate guarantee to a bank
agagregating to Rs. 45,50,00,000/- in respect
of loans availed by the associate company, MIV

informed of such case by the Management.

Place: Kochi - 19
Date: 05.06.2015
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INKEL Limited
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2015

Note No. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
(In Rupees) {In Rupees)
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
[a) Share Capital 21 1,65,02,70,000 1,65,02,70,000
[0} Reserves and Surplus 22 21,80,03.462 17.40,37.543%
(2) Non - Current Liabilities
[a) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 23 2.75,57,651 66,599,723
(b} Other Long -Term Liahilities 24 55,46,240 50,735,000
[c) Long - Term Provisions 25 10.40,450 27.01.665
[3) Current Liabilities
[a) Trade Payables 26 91,29433 1,70,59,719
() Other Current Liabilities 2.7 510,64117 6,10,51,863
(c) Short Term Provisions 28 6,05,89,529 2.52,57.691
TOTAL 2,00,32,00,582 193,211,164
Il. ASSETS
(1) Non - Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(il Tangible Assets 259 46,59,42,649 50,38,20,786
(i} Intangible Assets 29 93,281 1,44,998
(ili) Capital Work - in - Progress 240 8.31,01,054 1.22,54,705
(B) Non - Current Investrnents 21 30,65,81,528 51,95.43 260
[c) Long - Term Loans and Advances 212 12,71,19,394 2.10,56,968
(d} Other non-current assets 213 9,2752,268 -
(2) Current Assets
[@) Inventories 214 - -
(b) Trade Receivables 215 112,520 1.44,96,864
[c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 216 40,77.94,572 56,39,86,960
[d} Short - Term Loans and Advances 247 40,02 ,67.809 2765 56,069
(e} Other Current Assets 2418 82,9656 2.06,50,554
TOTAL 2,00,32,00,582 1,93,21,11,164

\ Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1 & 2 y.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our Report of even date attached

T. Balakrishnan, M.M. Abdul Basheer, For Varma & Varma
Managing Director Director Chartered Accountants
DIN: 00052922 DIN: 00120916 Firm No,0045325
K. Padmadasan, George Raphael, Vijay Narayan Govind
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer (Partner)

Membership No. 203094
Place : Kochi

Date : 05/06/2015
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INKEL Limited
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2015
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No. 31.03.2015 3.03.2014
(in Rupees) (In Rupees)
.  Revenues
Revenue from Operations 219 33,49,64,754 6,35,54,506
Other Income 220 315_2.25,216 ggs.ﬂa,mo
Il. Total Revenue 45,41,90,870 15,93,63,206
l. Expenses:
Cost of land acguired,/building constructed
and disposed (on Long Term FHnance Lease
Agresments) 2.2 20,50,67.875 216,80146
Employes Benefit Expense 222 2,08,26,019 2,85,52,603
Finance Costs 2.23 4,61,648 -
Depreciation and Amortisation 29 1.80,06,925 2,21,24.618
Other Expenses 224 514,61,748 3,020,951
Iv.Total Expenses 29,58,24.215 10,25,78,298
V. Profit Before Tax (IV - 1l) 15,83,66,755 5,67.84.908
Vi. Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 3,46,28,270 1,54,02 674
(2] Deferred Tax 2,08.97928 3066628
Vil. Profit for the period (V- V1) 10,28,30,557 3,835,606
Vil Earning per Equity Share: 2.25
(1) Basic 630.76 25447
(2) Diluted 630.76 25447
\ Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1 & 2

vy

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
T. Balakrishnan,

As per our Report of even date attached

M.M. Abdul Basheer, For Varma & Varma

Managing Director Director Chartered Accountants
DiN: 00052922 DIN: 00120916 Firm No.0045325
K. Padmadasan, GCeorge Raphael, Vijay Narayan Govind
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer (Partner)

Membership No. 203084
Place : Kochi
Date : 05/06/2015
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INKEL Limited
NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2015
(In Rupees)
NOTE - 2.1 SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars Number | Asat 31-03-2015 | Number of| As at 31-03-2014
of Shares Amount Shares Amount

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised

Equity Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs 10,000/-(Rs. 10,000/-) Each | 2,00,000 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000| 2,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs 10,000/-(Rs, 10,000/-) Each | 163,027 1,63,02,70,000 163,027 | 1.63,02,70,000

1,65,027 1,65,02,70,000 1,65,027 | 1,65,02,70,000

e /

Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

The cempany has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares with a face value of Rs. 10,000/ - each. Each holder of
equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend
proposed,/ declared by the Board of Directors Is subject to approval/regularisation of the sharehoiders' in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive
remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

(In Rupees)
Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year

Particulars Number | Amount-Asat| Number | Amount-Asat
of Shares 51-03-2015 of Shares | 31-03-2014

Equity Shares

As at the beginning of the financial year 1,63,027 1,63,02,70,000 137566 | 1,57.56,60,000
Shares issued during the financial year - - 25,461 25,46 10,000
As at the end of the financial year 163,027 | 1,63,02,70,000 163,027 | 1.63,02,70,000

Particulars of Shareholders holding more than
5% share in the Company

Covt. of Kerala - 24.84 % (Previous year 24.84 %) 40,500 40,50,00,000 40,500 | 40,50,00,000
Bismi Holdings Ltd - 6.75 % (Previous year 6.75 %) 14,000 14,00,00,000 11,000 14,00,00,000
Shri. Yusuffall M A - 1513 % (Previous year 1513 %) 24,666 24,66,60,000 24,666 24,66,60,000
Shri. Varghese Kurian - 8,75 % (Previous year 6,75 %) 11,000 44.00,00,000 11.000 11,00,00,000
.\hDer::lharnEd Ali - 6.44 % {Previous year 6.44 %) 10,500 10,50,00,000 10,500 10,50,00,000 -
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INKEL Limited
NOTE - 2.2 EESERHEE&_SUEFLU:E (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014 |
Surplus
Opening Balance 17.40,37.543 17,09,79,588
MNet Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 10,28,30,557 3,835,606
Amount Avallable for Appropriation 27,68,68,100 20,92,95,194
Less: Appropriations
Proposed Dividend | See Note 2.21) 4.89,08100 3.01,36,032
Tax on Proposed Dividend 99.56,538 51,21.619
5,88,64,638 5,52,57,651

Closing Balance 21,80,0%3. 462 17.40,37.543

L 21,80,03,462 17,40,37,543 3
221

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a dividend of Rs.300/- per sharelRs. 200/- per share) for the

financial year 2014-15.

NOTE - 2.3 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014 |
A. Deferred Tax Liability
On excess of net book value over Income tax written
down value of fixed assets 2,804,787 69,68126
B. Deferred Tax Assets
Cn disallowances 457136 3,08,403
\_ 2,75,57.651 66,59.723 )
NOTE - 2.4 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES (in Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014 |
Security Deposits 95,46,240 ot 73,000
55,46,240 50,73,000 J
NOTE - 2.5 LONG TERM PROVISIONS (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Provision for employee benefits
-Provision for Leave Encashment (See Note 2.26) 10,40,450 19,92,020
-Provision for Gratuity(See Note 2.26) 709,645
10,40,450 27.01,665
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NOTE - 2.6 TRADE PAYABLES (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014

Trade Payables §4,29133 4,70,59,719

91,29133

1,70,58,719

|
)

The company has taken steps to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as
defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 and the same Is in progress. Based on
available information, there are no balance outstanding as payable to such suppliers as at the year end. In the opinion of
the management there are no amounts paid/ payable towards interest under the said statute.

NOTE - 2.7 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-05-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Creditors For Capital Assets 44,82 170 1517.049
Lease hold Premium received in Advance 5,54,55170 4,02,99,601
Advance From Customers,/Clients 23,91,550 74,61.664
Retention Maoney payable 48,352,824 M 3210
Statutory Dues 34,70,494 44,089,607
Security Deposit / Earnest Money Deposit 5.01,403 214,232
Unclaimed Dividend 2.30,506 18,500
L 5,10,64.117 6,10,51,863
MNOTE - 2.8 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS {In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-05-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Provision for employee benefits
-Provision for Leave Encashment (See Note 2.26) 1411,845
-Provision for Gratuity(See Note 2.26) 313,046 -
Proposed Dividend 4,89,08100 3,01,36,032
Tax on Proposed Dividend 99,56,538 21.21,613
L. 6,05,89,529 3,52,57.651 )
NOTE - 2:10 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-05-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Projects under implementation B,31,01,054 1,22,54,705 |
8,51,01,054 1,22,54,705 J
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(In Rupees)

.

Particulars

a) Inwvestments in Equity Instruments

(Un-quoted, Trade, at cost)
i) In Subsidiary Companies

-INKEL- KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Ltd
74,000 (74,000) Equity Shares of Rs10/-each, Fully Paid up

INEEL- KSIDC Projects Ltd
1,83,23,412 (1,83,25,412) Equity Shares of Rs10/-each,
fully Paid up

~-Thalikkulam PURA Pvt Ltd
Nil (8,51,500) Equity Shares of Rs10/-each, Fully Paid up

-Tirurangadi PURA Pvt Ltd
Mil (8,35,700) Equity Shares of RsA10/ -each, Fully Paid up

- INKES Trade Centre Ltd
27,000 [NIL) Equity Shares of Rs10/-each, Fully Paid up

il} In Associate companies
-MIV Logistics Pyt Ltd
1,18,29,714 (1,18,29,714) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each,
Fully Paid up

KV Apartments Pyt Ltd( Associate till 3112.2014)
50,000 (4,50,000) Eguity Shares of Rs10/-each, fully paid up

As at 31-03-2015

740,000

18,32,34120

3,70,000

11.82,97.140

500,000

As at 31-03-2014

740,000

18,32 34,120

8515,000

83,357,000

11,82,97140

45,00,000

NOTE - 211 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(In Rupees)

c)

Particulars

b) Investments in Optionally Cumulative Convertible

Debentures (Un-guoted, Trade, at cost)
In Associate companies (Associate till 31.12.2014)

Mil (19,57,000)15% Opticnally Cumulative Convertible
Debentures in KV Apartrents Pyt Led

Investment in Limited Liability Partnership(LLP)
(Un-quoted, Trade)

In Jointly Controlled Entity

Seguro - INKEL Consortium LLP- Investment towards
45% of the capital

Add: Share of Profit from LLP

Total capital of the LLP- Rs40,00,000

Mames of other partner and % share in the capital
Seguro Foundations and Structurals Private Limited,
represented by its designated partner - 55%

Total investments (a) + (b) + ( c)

As at 31-03-2015

4,50,000
29,90,268

As at 31-03-2014

19.57.00,000

34,40,268

30,65,81,528

51,93,43,260

M

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

30,65,81,528

51,93,43,260

F )

—

2.11.1 Having regard to the plans for future operations of the subsidiary//associate companies, the management is of the
opinion that the koans given to these companies will be recovered in full together with interest thereon and there is no
permanent diminution in the value of such investments,
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NOTE - 212 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (In Rupees)
Farticulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014

Unsecured (Considered good)

Advance for Capital Assets 170,000

Security Deposits 21,286,740 14,6110
Advance to Kerala State Industrial Enterprises Ltd towards

proposad Joint Venture Infrastructure Project 1,21,00,000 1,21,00,000
Income Tax (Net) 111,862,654 74,95 858
Advance to Related Parties

- Seguro - INKEL Consortium LLP 10,00,00,000 -

L 12,7119,394 210,56,968 |
NOTE - 213 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014

Trade Receivables

{Unsecured Considered good )

-Cutstanding for a period exceading six months from the date

they were due for payment - )
-Othersi5ee Note 2131) 9,2752,268 -

N 9,27,52,268 -

2131 Represents dues from Kerala Academy for Skills Excellence{KASE), a Government of Kerala owned private limited

Company in which adirector of INKEL Ltd is a director;

NOTE - 214 INVENTORIES {In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Land and Building held on long term finance lease
Opening Balance
Add: Additions during the year 20,50,67.875 2.16,90,146
Less; Disposed during the year 20,50,67.875 216,90146
Closing Balance
A, A
NOTE - 215 TRADE RECEIVABLES {In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Trade Receivables
(Unsecured Considered good )
-Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they were due for payment 5735036
-Others See Mote 2151) 11,08,79,035 1,44 96,864
11,12,52,0M1 1,44,96,864

A

r

2151 Trade Receivables include Rs53,82.737/- (Rs6,58,797/-) due from MIV Logistics Private Limited and Rs.
9,27.52 267/- (Mil) due from Kerala Academy for Skills Excellence(KASE)- a Covernment of Kerala owned private limited

company: inwhich a director of INKEL Ltd is a director.
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NOTE - 216 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Cash on Hand 1603 13,279
Balance with Banks

In Current Accounts 20,536,769 2,30,92.965
In Fixed Deposit Accounts 40,57,50,000 34,08,80, 716
. 40,77,94,572 56,39,86,960

2161 Earmarked Balances:

4. Balance with banks in Current Accounts include earmarked balances for unpaid dividend Bs. 18197 /- {Rs. 18,815/-) for
the financial year 2009-10 and Bs.2,30, 948,/ - (NIL) for the financial year 2013-14,

2:16.2 Balance with banks in Deposit Accounts include Rs, 2,50,000/- (Rs. 50,000/-) held under lien with a maturity period

of more than 12 months:
NOTE - 2.17 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (in Rupees)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-05-2014
(Unsecured, Considered good]
Loans/Advances to related parties
Thalikulam - PURA Private Ltd 2,297
Tirurangadi - PURA Private Ltd 2,594
INKEL- KSIDC Projects Ltd 25,75,79.025 25,69,95,520
INKEL - KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Ltd 1.86,49,996 1.4314.207
INKES Trade Centre Ltd 36,72,797
Seguro - INKEL Consortium LLP 9.,70,06,567
Others;
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 2,228,898 3,75.000
Earnest Money Deposits 35,00,000
Balances with Central Excise etc. 80,207 118,731
Advance to Suppliers,/Contractors 9,53,377 10,24,920
Advance to employees 06,942 23,000
\ 40,02,67,809 27,63,56,069
NOTE - 218 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS {In Rupees)
Particulars As at 31032015 As at 31-05-2014
Other Current Assets
Interest Receivable 79,55,983 2,05,65,5189
Prepaid expenses 340173 B5,035
82,96,156 2,06,50,554
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AS ON 31.03.2015

NOTE- 219 (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

income from disposal of land and building
1On long term finance lease) 30,53,38. 110 5,43 88,412
Income from Operating Lease B1,63,368 53,40,844
Common Amenity Charges 18.78.396 -
Income from Project Management Services (See Note 2191} 1,43,501455 2,06,55,050
Share of Course Fee Received 52.34,725 31.70,200
. 33,49,64,754 6,35,54,506

2191 Government of Kerala, Department of Treasury, Trivandrum has entrusted the work of modernising and
renovating existing treasuries and construction of new treasury buildings under agreements to the company, at various
locations in the State of Kerala. As per the said agreements, read with Covernment of Kerala, GO on  guidelines on this
matter (for executing civil works) , the company Is entitled to the total sum of Rs11,59,57 3/-(Rs. 65,30,561/-) as Centage
Charges for the year, at agreed rates, which is recognised as income, and inciuded inincome from project management
services in the staterment of profit and loss for the year. Expenses incurred during the year by BSNL, who was engaged as
construction agency for the works by the Company for such contracts and by other contractors engaged by the
Company aggregating to Rs. 1,96,90,349/- ( Rs. 7.60,55,486/-) has been reimbursed to them out of deposits
received,/receivable from Government of Kerala for the works. Consultancy charges payable to BSNL at agreed rates has
been recognized as expenditure,

NOTE- 2.20 . (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
3103-2015 31-03-2014
OTHER INCOME

Interest Income 11,41,89,459 0.11,75.351

Share of Profit from LLP 29,90.268
Cuarantee Fee Received - 35.00,000
Profit on Sale of Assets 171114 32,289
Tender Fee Received 1,053,000 12,000
Miscellanepus Income 14.15,770 10.89,0680

Liquidity Damages 3,56,605
11,92,26,216 9,58,08,700

;.
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NOTE-2.21 (In Rupees)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
3103-2015 31-03-2014

Cost of land acquired,/building constructed and disposed

(on long term finance lease agreements)

- Cost of Land £19,79,883 41,75,276

- Cost of Building 17.50,87.8992 1,754,870

. 20,50,67.875 216,90146 )
NOTE-2.22 (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31-03-2015 31-03-2014

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries & Allowances( See Note 2.22.1) 1,86,26,808 2,66,38,641

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 14,68.861 120.581

Staff Welfare Expense 730,350 703,581
2,08,26,019 2,85,52,603

L.

A

2.221 Includes Fs 15,534,580/ - being remuneration to the Managing Director for the period from 1st November 2014 to
31st March 2015, which has been provided in the accounts based on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee at thelr meeting held on 20/02/2M15 and approved by the Board of Directors at thelr meeting held on
5/06,/ 2015, Approval from shareholders under Companies Act 2013 is being sought at the ensuing general meeting.

NOTE - 2.23 (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
M-03-2015 31-03-2014
FINANCE COSTS
Interest expense 4 61648 2
4,61,648 -
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NOTE-2.24 (In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31-03-2014 31-03-2015
OTHER EXPENSES
Praject Management Services Expenses 59.68,078 67,61,972
Bad Debt Written OFf = 532181
Power & Fuel 17,54,398 13,31,502
Rent 27,78,424 24,776,892
Repairs & Maintenance 12,26,604 11,089,530
Insurance 122,934 96,418
Payment to Auditors
Statutory Audit 1,25,000 1,25,000
Tax Audit 20,000 20,000
Other Services 85,000 50,000
Reimbursement of expenses 15,210 2,310
Meeting expenses 18.46,023 B.56.328
Sitting fee to Directors %,22,500 -
Consideration for Manpower services 46,55,961 40,7131
Course expenses 916,926 5,435,549
Advertisement & Publicity 12,353,858 25,96,626
Loss on Sale of assets 3,168 97,586
Membership,/ Subscription to Professional bodies 44,776 78,680
Postages, Telephone and internet charges 8.74,057 9,64,056
Printing and Stationery 243299 2,61,923
Professional Charges & Legal Fee 745,381 25,26,395
Rates & Taxes 27,58.451 15.28,657
Staff Recruitment Expense 7,76.540 2,07826
Travelling & Conveyance 42,24 854 32,69,202
Trade Investments written off 1,68.81,891 -
Expenditure on projects written off 33,536,351
Hostel Running Expense 1,98,085 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 303,979 703157
b 5,14,61,748 3.0210,931
2.241 Note on Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility activitles
i) Gross amount required to be spent during the year: 8,57,400
il) Amount spent during the year In cash

- Construction,/acquisition of any asset
- on purposes other than above

Yet to be pald in cash
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NOTE-2.25 {In Rupees)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended |
31-03-2015 31032014 |
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after tax for the year as per Statement of Profit and
Loss (Im Rs.) 10,28,30,557 3.8315,606
Weighted average number of Equity shares of Rs10,000/-
(Rs10,000/-) each (fully paid up)- Nos. 1,635,027 1.50,750
\_Earnings Per Equity Share { Basic and Diluted ) ( In Es. ) 630.76 25417

Note No. 2.26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

{Disclosure under Accounting Standard 15 - Employee Benefits', Revised 2005)

2,261 Defined Contribution Plans

During the year the company has recognized Rs.7,93,229/-(Previous Year Rs.B,91,362/-) in the Statement of Profit and

Loss on account of defined contribution plans.
2.26.2 Defined Benefit Plans
Cratuity (Funded)

()| Actuarial Assumptions 31st March, 2015
Discount Rate (per annum) B.00% p.a.
Expected return on plan assets 8.00% p.a.
Salary escalation rate * 5.00% p.a.

Mortality rate

A

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
[1994-1996] Ultimate

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant

factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

{In Rs.)
| (i) Reconciliation of present value of obligation: 31st March, 2015
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 18,16,413
Current Service Cost 5.25.145
Interest Cost 116,319
Actuarial (gain)/loss 111182
Benefits Paid (2.11,510)
Curtaliments -
Ssettlements =

\_ | Present value of obligation at the end of the year 23,57549
(InRs.)
| {iii} Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets : 31st March, 2015
Fair value of plan assets at the beainning of the year 11,06,768
Expected return on plan assets 1.52,640
Actuarial gain/{loss) (1,09,357)
Contributions 8,94,452
Benefits paid -

Acgets distributed on settiement

20,44,503

\ Falr value of plan assets at the end of the year

.
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T {in Rs.)
{iv)| Net (Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet
as at year end: F1st March, 2015
Prasent value of obligation 23,57,549
Fair value of plan assets 20,44 503
Net present value of unfunded obligation recognised as (asset)/
A liability in the Balance Sheet 315046
{InRs.)

(v] | Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 31st March, 2015
Currant Service Cost 5,25145
Interest Cost 116,519
Expected return on plan assets (1,52,640)
Actuarial (gain) /loss recognised in the pericd 2,20,539
Past Service Cost -
Curtailment cost -
Settlernent cost -

- Total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 709,363 rd

Leave Plan (Unfunded)

(I} Actuarial Assumptions 31st March, 2015
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.00% p.a.
Expected return an plan assets Not Applicable
Salary escalation rate * 5.00% p.a.
Mortality rate Indian Assured Lives

A,

Mortality [1994-1996] Ultimate

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant

factors such as supply and demand in the emplovment market,

(InRs.)
(i) | Reconciliation of present value of obligation: 31st March, 2015
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 19,892,020
Current Service Cost 7.49.057
Interest Cost 1.89,524
Actuarial (gain)/loss 33,235
Benefits Paid (5,11,341)
Curtailments -
Settlements -

L Present value of obligation at the end of the year 24,52 295 >

L o (inRs.)

lﬁ}l Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets : 31st March, 2015

Falr value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gain/(loss)

Contributions

Benefits pald

Assets distributed on settlement

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
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(in Rs.)
(iv)| Net {Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet as at year end: 31st March, 2015
Present value of obligation 24,52,295
Fair value of plan assets -
Met present value of unfunded obligation recognised as {asset)/
\__| liability in the Balance Sheet 24,52,295
(inRs)
(v] | Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 31st March, 2015
Current Service Cost 749,057
Interest Cost 1,89,324
Expected return on plan assets -
Actuarial (gain) /loss recognised in the period 33,235
Past Service Cost
Curtaiiment cost
Settlerment cost -
| Total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 971616 )

The above disclosures are based on information certified by the independent actuary and relied upon by the auditors.
Upto the previous year, the liability was being assessed on estimated gross undiscounted basis, since eligible employees
being smallin number and hence there are no correspanding disclosures for the previous year,

Note -2.27

Disclosure of transactions with Related Parties as required by Accounting Standard - 18 on Related Party

Disclosures as prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006,

A Related parties and nature of relationship

; INKEL KSIDC Projects Ltd. Subsidiary Company
i, INKEL KINFREA Infrastructure Projects Ltd Subsidiary Company
il Thalikulam PURA Pyt Ltd Subsidiary Company
i, Tirurangadi PURA Pvt Ltd Subsidiary Company
. MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd Associate Company
i, KV Apartments Pvt Ltd Associate Company(till 3112.2014)
wili Seguro - INKEL Consortium LLP Jointly Controlled Entity
Wil INKES Trade Centre Ltd Subsidiary Company
i Key Managerial Personnel
- Mr. T Balakrishnan Managing Director J
B. Description of Transactions
Nature of Transaction Subsidiary Company/ Key Managerial Total
Associate Company Personnel
Income
1 Income
Froject Management Services
MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd 52,58,634 52,58,634
(1,09,67.997) (1.09,67,997)
INKEL KSIDC Projects Ltd. 21,5715 21.57115
{20,67.492) {20,67.492)
Curantee Commission Recelved
MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd - -
\_ (35.00.000) (35,00,000)
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I
Nature of Transaction Subsidiary %ﬂn?pmf K%ma Total
2 Interest income from Loans/Debentures
KV Apartments Private Limited 2,66,56,479 2.66,56,479
(52,36,973) (52,36,973)
INKEL KSIDC Projects Ltd. 2,75,29.314 2,75,29.314
(2.65,91,984) (2,65,91,984)
INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Ltd 4817543 48,17,543
(-l =
Seguro INKEL Consortium LLP 49,241,085 48 21,085
(-] (-1
Thalikulam PURA Private Limited - -
{(2.27,998) (2,27.998)
Tirurangadi PURA Private Limited - -
(2,21153) (2,21153)
Expenses
1 Remuneration to Managing Director
(See Note 2.221) 36,34,580 %6,34,580
{1,01,00,000) (1,01,00,000)
Loans/Advances and Investments
1 INKEL KSIDC Projects Ltd.
= Loan/ Advances given 1,000,000 1,00,000
(9,88,52,565) (9,B8,52,565)
- Loan,/Advances recovered 2,64,00,000 2.64,00,000
(1,96,16,738) (1,96,16,738)
2 INKEL KINFEA Infrastructure
Projects Ltd.
- Loan/Advances given - -
(1,84,387) (1,84,387)
3 Thalikulam PURA Pvt Ltd
- Loan/ Advances given 2,900 2,800
(<) (-]
- Loan/ Advances written off 5197 5197
- Investments made - -
(84,13,000) (84,13,000)
- Investrments written off 85,15,000 855,000
(=) (-)
4  Tirurangadi PURA Pvt Ltd - .
- Loans/ Advance given 2100 2100
(-] (-}
- Amounts written off 4,694 4,694
(=) (-]
- Investrments made - B
(82,55,000) (82.55,000)
- Investments written off 83,57.000 83,57.000
\ (-) ()
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Nature of Transaction Subsidiary Company/ | Key Managerial Total
Associate Company Personnel
5 INKES Trade Centre Ltd
Loan/Advances given 38.64,2%1 38,64,231
(-] (-
& Seguro-INKEL Consortium LLP
Loan given 19,25,77.591 19,25,77.591
-] (-}
7 KV Apartments Private Limited
Sale of shares in the Company 40,00,000 40,00,000
k=) {-)
Investments
1 INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Ltd, 740,000 740,000
(7,40,000] (7.40,000)
2 INKEL-KSIDC Ltd 18,32,34120 18,32,34120
(18,32,34120) i18,32,34120)
3 KV Apartments Pvt Led 5.00,000 500,000
(20,02 ,00,000) (20,02,00,000)
4 MV Logistics Pvt Ltd 11,82,97140 11,82,97140
(11,82,97140) {11,82,97140)
5  Thalikulam PURA Pyt Ltd . .
(85,15,000) 185,15,000)
6 Tirurangadi PUBA Pyt Ltd . .
(83,57.000) (83,57.000)
7 INKES Trade Centre Ltd 5,70.,000 3,70,000
B Seguro INKEL Consortium LLP 5&,40,25581 sa,ae.zéé
(Including share of profit) (-] [-)
Cuarantee given
1 MV Logistics Pvt Ltd 45,50,00,000 45,50,00,000
{45,50,00,000) (45,50,00,000)
Feceivables
1 MV Logistics Pyt Ltd 53.82,737 5322737
(6,58.797) (6,58.797)
2 INKEL KSIDC Projects Ltd. 26,0917,296 26,0947.296
[25,93,18,354) (25,95,18,554)
3 INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Ltd. 1,93,62,701 1,893,627
(1,43,14,207) (1.4314,207)
4 Thalikulam PURA Pvt Ltd - -
(2,297) (2,297)
5 Tirurangadi PURA Pyt Ltd - -
(2,594) (2,594)
6 Seguro INKEL Conscrtium LLP 19,70,06,567 -
i) (-}
7 INKES Trade Centre Ltd 36,72 797 36,72,797
(-] (-}
h

Note: Transactions in the nature of current account transactions have not been included
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The company Is engaged In providing infrastructure facilities and other services in connection with infrastructure
projects. In the opinion of the management, this is the only primary reportable segment within the meaning of
Accounting Standard-17 notified by the Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules 2006,

MNote 2.29
Interest in joint ventures

The Company has a A5%{PY-Nil) ownership interest in the Jointly controlled entity (JCE] -Seguro INKEL Consortium LLP,

incorporated in India

Details of Kevenue Transactions in the above said joint venture are as under :

{(inRs.)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31-03-2015 51-05-2014
A. Total Revenue 22,43,00,000 )
B. Total Expensesiincluding tax expense) 21.82,54,961
C. Net Profit/(Loss) from the Joint Venture 66,45,038
Ith[::f. Share of Income/(Loss) of the Company in the above 29,90,268 ]
Details of other items related to the interest in the JCE are as under: G R%)
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-032014
Assets of the Company related to interest in the JCE ’
l\-LGa ns and advances granted to the JCE 19,70,06,567 : JJ

The other venturer in the JCE is Seguro Foundations and Structurals Private Limited , which has the remaining 55%(PY -

Nil} ownership interest in the JCE.

Note - 2.30
Contingent Liabilities not provided for : As at 31.03.2015(Rs) | As at 31.03.2014 (Rs)
a) Corporate guarantee issued in favour of AssocCiate Company
MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd- Amount Outstanding 35,37.30.812 24.9313.632
Total amount of guarantee- RBs. 45,50,00,000(Rs.45,50,00,000)
b) Claims towards Building Tax 28,55,835 571,200
Note - 2.531
Capital Commitments As at 31.03.2015(Rs) | As at 31.05.2014 (Rs)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for 9,96,85,212
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Note-2.52

Dividend Remittances in foreign currency:- For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2015(Rs) 31.03.2014(Rs)

Year to which dividend relates Financial year 2013-2014

Amount remitted during the year 44,00,000

Mumber of non resident shareholders 4

k‘_Number of shares on which dividend was due 22,000 x 3
Note - 2.33

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year figures unless otherwise stated are given within
brackets and have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our Report of even date attached
T. Balakrishnan, M.M. Abdul Basheer, For Varma & Varma
Managing Director Director Chartered Accountants
DIN: 00052522 DiM: 00120916 Frm No.00453525
K. Padmadasan, Ceorge Raphael, Vijay Narayan Govind
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer (Partner)

Membership No. 203094
Place : Kochi
Date : 05/06/2015
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2015
{In Rupees)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
A | CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Taxation and exceptional items 15,83,66,755 5,67,84,908
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortisation 1,80,06,925 2.21,24 618
Loss/(Profit) on sale of Assets(Net) (1.67,946) 65,297
interest Income (11.41,89,459] (9.11,75.351)
interest paid 4,61,648 -
Share of Profit from Seguro-INKEL Consortium LLP 29,90,268 -
Liabilities “Assets no Longer required written off 1,97.29,938 (10,89,060)
Conversion of fixed assets to current assets 20,09,42,226 26,9046
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 28,61,40,355 84,00,558
Changes in Working Capital
Adjustments for ( Increase )\Decrease in
Operating Assets
Trade Receivables (18,95,07475) (79,68,709)
Short term loans and advances (1.8312,882) 2,425,570
Other Current Assets (2,55,138) 4,657
Long term Loans and Advances [6,65.630) (8,24,010)
(20,87.41125) 1,54,27,508
Adjustments for increase ( Decrease ) in Operating
Liabilities
Trade Pavables (79,30,586) 1,69.88,485
Other Current Liabilities (1,31,83,373) 1,96,735,267
Short term Provisions 17,24,891 -
Long term Provisions (16,61,215) 9.,51.314
Long Term Liabilities 4,73,240 (57.93,052)
(2,05,77,043) 318,20,014
Cash generated from Operations 5.68,22187 5,56,47,880
Taxes Paid {3,83,25,066) (2,04,40,754)
MNet Cash Used in Operating activities { A) 1,84,97121 3,52,07126
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{In Rupees)
| particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended :
B | CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital WIP (25,35,70,682) (6.46,59,403)
Loans and Advances made (20,55,98,859) (7.81,32,576)
Interest received on loans/ deposits 12.67.98,995 8,30.06,8M
Proceeds from sale of Fixed assets 2,70166 2,771,029
(Investments)/Sale of equity shares (32,50,536) {2,11,68,000)
(Investments)/Redemption of debentures 19,57,00,000 [19,57,00,000)
Investments in Others 4,50,000
Net Cash Used in Investing activities -(EB) (13,92,00,916) (27,65,81,879)
C | CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Share Capital 25,4610,000
Interest paid (4,61,648)
Dividend paid {2,99,05,526)
Dividend Distribution tax paid {51,21,619)
Net Cash Generated By Financing Activities-(C ) (3,54,88,793) 25,46,10,000
Net increase In Cash and Cash equivalents (15,61,92,588) 1,34,35,247
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 56,39,86,960 55,05,51, M3
.. | Closing Cash And Cash Equivalents 40,77.94,372 56,39,86,960

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year includes Rs.2,50,000/- (Rs. 50,000/-] held under lien and Ks.249,145/ -
(Rs18,815/-) deposited in unclaimed dividend account which s earmarked for payment of dividend,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T. Balakrishnan,

As per our Report of even date attached

M.M. Abdul Basheer,

Managing Director Director
DIN: 00052922 DiN: 00120916
K. Padmadasan, George Raphael,

Company Secretary

Place : Kochi
Date : 05/06/2015

Chief Financial Officer

For Varma & Varma

Chartered Accountants

Firm No.004532S

Vijay Narayan Govind

(Partner)

Membership No. 203094
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1. Significant Accounting Policies
a. Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian CAAP) The
Comparyy has prepared these financial statements to
comply In all material respects with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014,
The financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis and under the historical cost  convention.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
financial statements are consistent with those of
previous year,

b. Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in
conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles require estimates and assumptions to be
made that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Difference between the actual result
and estimates are recognized in the pericd in which the
results are known /materialized.

[+ Fixed Assets

Land acquired on long term leass arrangements
that are in the nature of financial leases are classified
under Fixed Assetsand amortised over the lease period.
Buildings constructed on such land are capitalised and
depreciated as per company's accounting policy. Such
land and building are reclassified and treated as Current
Assets [at Net Book Value)when the decision to dispose
under long-term finance leases Is conclusively taken by
the management.,

Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition,
which includes taxes, duties, freight and other incidental
expenses  incurred for bringing the assets to the
working condition required for their intended use, less
depreciationand impairment in value if any, is
adjusted

d. Depreciation/ Amortisation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Written
Down Value Method on the basis of the useful life in the
manner prescribed as per Schedule |l of The Companies
Act, 2013. Leasehold land is amortised over the duration
of thelease. Cost of software treated as Intangible
Assets isamortised over a period of six years,

INKEL Limited

e Investments

Non-Current Investments are stated at cost
Decline in wvalue, if any, which is not considered
temporaryinnature,is  provided for.

F. Revenue Recognition

Revenue arising on disposal of current assets
under long-term lease arrangements that are in nature
of financial leases  is recognised in the year in which the
lease agreements are entered into. Proportionate
income during the period of license agreement and
income from other arrangements which are in the
nature of operating leases, are recognized as
income in the respective years. Other incomes are
recognized on accrual basis except when there are
significant uncertainties

a. Employee Benefits
Short Term Employes Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve
months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits and recognized in the period in
which the emplovee renders the related service.

Defined Contribution Plans

The company has defined contribution plans for
employees comprising of Provident Fund. The
contributions paid/payable to these plans during the
year are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year.

Defined Benefit Plans: Gratuity (Funded)

The company makes contributions to the
Employee's Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme
of the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The net
present value of the ocbligation for gratuity benefits as
determined on actuarial valuation conducted annuatly
using the projected unit credit method, as adjusted for
unrecognised past services cost, if any, and as reduced
by the fair value of plan assets, is recognised in the
accounts. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in
full In the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in
which they occur,

Other Long term employee benefits;
Compensated absences(Unfunded)

The company has a scheme for compensated
absences for employvees, the liabiity of which is
determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation carried
out at the end of the vear. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised In fullin the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the period in which they occur,
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h. Income Tax

Income tax s accounted N accordance with
Accounting Standard on Accounting for Taxes on
Income (AS-22), which includes current taxes and
deferred taxes. Deferred Tax assets/ liabilities
representing timing differences between accounting
income and taxable income are recognised to the extent
cansidered capable of being reversed In
subsequent years. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available,
except that deferred tax assets arising due to
unabsorbed depreciation and lossaes are recognised if
there is a virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available to realise the same,

L Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at
the exchange rate prevaling on the date of the
transaction, Monetary assets and lizbllities outstanding
at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the
applicable exchange rates prevalling at the year-end,
The exchange gain/loss arising during the year Is
adjusted to the Statement of Profit and Loss

J.  Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that takesa substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use are capitalised, Other borrowing costs
arerecognizedas expenditure for the period in which
they are incurred.

k. Earningspershare

Basic/ diluted earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
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equity shareholders [after deducting attributable taxes)
by the weighted average number of equity shares/
dilutive potential equity shares outstanding as at the
end of the year as the case may be

L Impairment of Assets

The company assesses at each Balance Sheet date
whether there is any indication that an asset may be
Impaired. An asset |s identified as impaired, when
the carrying value of the asset exceeds its recoverable
value, Based on such assessment, impairment loss if any
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the
period in which the asset s identified as impaired. The
impairment |oss recogniced in the prior accounting
periods is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimate of recoverable amount.

m. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

Provisions are recoanised when the company has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, for which it
is probable that a cash outfiow will be required and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obfigation. Provisions are not discounted toits present
value and are determined based on management
estimatereguired to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the correct
management estimates.

Contingent Liablities are disclosed when the
company has a possible obligation or a present
obligation and it is probable that a cash flow will not be
required to settle the obligation,

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the accounts



Annual Report
2014 - 15

INKEL Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Members of Inkel Limited
Thrikkakara

Report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Inkel Limited (“hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company “) and it's
subsidiaries- Inkel KSIDC Projects Limited, Inkel
KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Limited and INKES
Trade Centre Limited (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”),
it's associate(MIV Logistics Private Limited) and its's
Jjointly controlled entity(Seguro Inkel Consortium
LLP), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2015, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”).

Management's Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its
associate and jointly controlled entity in
accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group
and of its associate and jointly controlled entity are
responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds

and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Holding Company's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of
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EXpressing an opinion on whether the Holding
Company has an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Holding Company's Board of
Directors, as well as ewvaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial
statements,

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in
sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Croup, its associate and
Jjointly controlled entity as at 31st March, 2015, and
their consolidated profit and their consclidated
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

[ayWe did not audit the financial
statements/financial information of the three
subsidiaries and one jointly controlled entity whose
financial statements/financial information reflect
total assets of Rs.72,3798,.587/- as at March
31,2015, total revenues of RBs.2618,20162/- and
net cash outflow of Bs. 17.47.206/- for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements also include
the Group's share of net loss of Rs, 10,07.09,522/-
for the year ended 31st March, 2015, as considerad
in the consolidated financial statements, in respect
of one associate, whose financial
statements/financial information have not been
audited by us.
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These financial statements/financial information
have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management and
cur opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entity and associate,
and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11}
of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiaries, jointly controlled entity
and associate, is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

(b) As stated in Note 1, during the vear, the Holding
Company has written off the book wvalue of
investments made in earlier years in the subsidiary
companies Thalikulam PURA Private Limited and
Thirurangadi PURA Private Limited for the reasons
stated therein. Neither of these companies has any
significant assets or liabliities. Further, the Holding
Company has also disposed the shareholding in an
assoclate enterprise KNV Apartments Private
Limited, which was held only for a period of nine
months, in view of the provisions of Accounting
Standard -21 on Consolidated Financlal Statements
and Accounting Standard-23 on Accounting for
Investments in Associates, these entities have been
excluded for the purpose of consolidation, the
effect of which is not material.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in
respect of the above matters including with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the
reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2015 ("the Order”), issued by the Central
Covernment of India in terms of sub-section (11)
of Section 143 of the Act, based on the
comments In the auditors' reports of the
Holding company, subsidiary companies and
associate company incorporated in India, we
gve in the Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:
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{al We have sought and obtained all the companies and associate company
information and explanations which to the incorporated in India, none of the directors
best of our knowledge and belief were of the Croup companies, its associate
necessary for the purposes of our audit of company incorporated in India is disqualified
the aforesaid consolidated financial as on Fst March, 2015 from being
statements. appointed as a director in terms of Section

164 (2) of the Act.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law relating to preparation of (f) With respect to the other matters to be
the afaresaid consofidated financial included In the Auditor's Report in
statements have been kept so far as it accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
appears from our examination of those (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, In our
books and the reports of the other auditors opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to

() The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the us:

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement . The consolidated financial

dealt with by this Report are in agreement statements disclose the impact of

with the relevant books of account pending litigations on the consolldated

maintained for the purpose of preparation financial position of the Group, its

of the consclidated financial statements, associate and Jointly controlied entity-
Refer Note 2.32.2 to the consolidated

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(e)

financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations
recelved from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2015 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary
companies and assoclate company
incorporatedin India, none of the directors

il. The Group, its associate and jointly
controlled entity did not have any
material foreseeable losses on long-
termn contracts including derivative
contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Holding Company, and its
subsidiary companies, and associate
company incorporated inIndia.

Place: Kochi-19
Date: 31.07.2015




INKEL Limited

Annual Report

2014 - 15

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS"” OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDIT
REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INKEL
LIMITED, ITS THREE SUBSIDIARIES AND ONE ASSOCIATE COMPANY INCORPORATED
IN INDIA FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

Our reporting on the Order includes three subsidiary
campaniesiinkel KSIDC Projects Limited, Inkel KINFEA
infrastructure Projects Limited and INKES Trade Centre
Limited! and cne associate company(MIV Logistics
Private Limited) incorporated in India, to which the
Order is applicable, which have been audited by other
auditors and our report in respect of these entities is
based on solely on the reports of the other auditors, to
the extent considered applicable for reporting under
the Order in the case of the consolidated financial
statements. Our reporting does not include one jointly
controlled entity to which the Order is not applicable,
except to the extent such information is available from
the unaudited financial statements furnished to us by
the management.

1. (8] The respective companies are maintaining

proper records showing full particulars
including  quantitative detalls and situation of
fixed assets. )
In the case of the subsidiary company M/s
INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Limited,
assets are still in capital work In progress stage
and hence Paragraph 3{i}{a] and (b) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b} We are Informed that major items of the
fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management of the respective companies
during the year, which, In our opinion and in the
opinion of the other auditors Is reasonable
having regard to the size of the respective
companies and the nature of its business and
that no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

2, (a) The inventory of the Holding Company
comprises only of land and building. According
to the Information given to us, the inventory of
the Holding Company has been physically
verified by the management of the holding
company. In our opinion, the frequency of such
verification is reasonable.

In the opinion of the other auditor, and
according to the information and explanations
given to the other auditor, the physical
verification of inventory of M/s INKEL KSIDC
Projects Limited has been has been conducted
at reasonable intervals by the management of
the subsidiary company.

In the opinion of the other auditors, and
according to the information and explanations
given to the other auditors, the subsidiary
company M/s INKEL KIMFRA Infrastructure
Projects Limited is an infrastructure company,
primarily developing infrastructure projects.
Accordingly it deoes not hold any physical
inventory. The subsidiary company M/s INKES
Trade Centre Limited does not hold any physical
inventaries. The associate company M/s MV
Logistics Private Limited Is a service company,

primarily rendering container and cargo related
activities. Accordingly it does not hold any
physical inventories, Thus paragraph 3lii)(a) to (c) of
the Order is not applicable to these three
companies

(B) In our opinion and in the opinion of the other
auditor and according to the explanations given
to us and the other auditor, the procedures for
physical verification of inventory followed by
the mal ment of the Holdng company and
the subsidiary company M/s INKEL KSIDC
Projects Limited are reasonable and adequate
in relation to the size of the respective
companies and the nature of its business.

() In our opinion and in the opinion of the other
auditor and according to the information and
explanation given to us and the other auditor,
the management of the Holding company and
the subsidiary company M/s INKEL KSIDC
Projects Limited is maintaining proper records
of inventory and no material discrepancies were
noticed on physical verification by the
respective companies.

. {a) According to the information and explations

given to the other auditors, the subsidiary

companies and associate company has not

granted |oans to companies, firms or other
parties covered In the reagister malntained
'E}Qﬂﬂ:t §f1::1:n:=n 189 of the Companies Act,2013("
& .

The Holding company has granted loan to three

subsidiaries and one limited liability partnership

covered in the register maintained under

iict]ian 189 of the Companies Act, 203" the
£

(b) In case of the above loan granted by the
Holding company, as per the information and
explanations given to ws, the terms do not
stipulate any repayment schedule and the
principal/interest are repayable on demand. The
parties hawve been regular in repayment of
the demands raised by the Holding Company.

(c)There are no overdue amounts of more than
rupees one lakh in respect of the loans granted
to the party covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act.

. In our opinion and in the opinion of the other

auditors and according to the information and
explanation given to us and the other auditors,
there is an adeguate internal control system
commensurate with the size of the Holding
company, subsidiary companies and associate
company and nature of its business for the
purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for
the sale of inventory and services. During the
course of our audit, we have neither come
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across nor have we been informed of any
continuing failure to correct major weaknesses
in the internal control systems.

. The holding company, subsidiary companies and

associate company has not accepted any
deposits from the public during the year and
hence, the directives ssued by the Reserve Bank
of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder are not applicable.

. To the best of our knowledge and according to
the information and explanations given to us
and to the other auditors, the Central
Covernment has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148

(1) of the Act for the Holding company, subsidiary
companies and associate company at this
stage.

(al As per the information and explanations
furnished to us and to the other auditors and
according to our examination of the records of
the respective companies by us and the other

The Kerala Building Tax Act, 1975

Nature of Dues

Building Tax
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furnished to us and to the other auditors and
according to our examination of the records of
the respective companies by us and the other
auditors, except for minor delays in depositing
Works Contract Tax by the Holding company,
the respective companies has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employee's State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax,
Service Tax , Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value
Added Tax , Cess and other statutory dues as
applicable to the respective companies with the
appropriate authorities during the year,

There are no arrears of undisputed statutory
dues outstanding at the last day of the financial
year for a period of more than six months from
the date on which they became pavable,

{b) According to the information and
explanations given to us and the records of the
holding company examined by us, the following
disputed amounts of building tax demanded
have not been deposited with the authorities as
gtli‘lst March, 2015 as per the detais given
elow:

Amount | Year to Which Forum Where
Amount Relates | Dispute is Pending
28,55,835 2013-2014 The High Court of

Kerala, Ernakulam

In respect of the subsidiary companies and the
associate company, according to the information
and explanations given to the other auditors, there
are no material dues of income tax, sales tax wealth
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty value
added tax and cess which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute.

{c)As per the information and explanations
furnished to us and to the other auditors, there
are no amounts to be deposited towards
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Holding company, the subsidiary companies and
associate company and hence the reporting
requirements under clauses (vil) (c}) of the
paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

. The Group and Iit's associate and jointly
controlled entity does not have any
accumulated losses as at the end of the
financial year on a consolidated basis and the
Croup and it's associate and jointly controlled
entity has not Incurred cash losses on a
consolidatedbasisin  the current financial year
and in the immediately preceding financial year,

. According to the information and explanations
given to us and to the other auditors, the
holding company and it's subsidiary company
M/s INKEL KSIDC Projects Limited and it's
associate company M/s MIV Logistics Private
Limitedhas not defaulted in repayment of
dues to banks.

According to the information and explanations
given to the other auditor, the subsidiary
companies M/s INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure
Projects Limited and M/s INKES Trade Centre
Ltd. has not taken loans from Ffinancial
institutions or banks.

10, According to the information and explanations

11.

12.

given to us and to the other auditors, the
holding company, subsidiary companies and
assoclate company have not given guarantees
for Ioans taken by others outside of the Group
from banks and financial institutions,

The holding company and the subsidiary
companies have not avalled any term loan and
hence reporting requirements under clause (i)
of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable

The term loans taken by the associate company
M/s MV Logistics Private Limited have been
applied for the purpose for which they were
raised.

During the course of our examination of the
books and records of the holding company,
carried out In accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the Information and explanations
given to us and to the other auditors, there are
no instances of material fraud on or by the
respective companies, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of
such case by the management.

Place: Kochi - 19
Date: 31.07.2015
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INEKEL LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015
Note No. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.20n4
{In Rupees) (In Rupees)
|. | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

{1} Shareholder's Funds

M

{a) Share Capital 21 1.63,02,70,000 1.63.02,70,000
{b) Reserves and Surplus 2.2 9,45,09,533 11,47.89,784
{c] Minority Interest 2.3 5.20,35.338 5.75,BB.151
(2} Non - Current Liabilities
{a] Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 2.4 2,55,57858 67,60,767
{b) Other Long -Term Liabilities 25 57.26,240 50.73.000
{c} Long - Term Provisions 286 11.64.619 27.01,665
(3) Current Liabilities
{a) Trade Payables 2.7 115,54,225 1.7911,898
{b) Other Current Liabilities 2.8 89.16,52172 B.12,60,287
{c) Short Term Provisions 29 6,08,05,482 3,52.57.651
TOTAL 1,97.32,75,507 1951613183
Il. | ASSETS
(1) Mon - Current Assets
{a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets 210 8753,021479 91,%8,55,604
(i) Intangible Assets 210 93,281 1,44 998
(iii) Capital Work - in - Progress 21 902,535,242 1,87.85,393
{b} Mon - Current Investments 212 6,46.43,657 32,28,06,346
{c) Long - Term Loans and Advances 213 10.47,05,393 3,94,16,331
{d) Other Non-Current Assets 214 9,28,96,268 1,44,000
(2)f Current Assets
{a) Inventories 215
{b) Trade Receivables 216 20,36,85,211 1,21,73,830
{c) Cash and Cash Egquivalents 217 40,86,82.727 56,66,02,585
{d] Short - Term Loans and Advances 218 12,04,85,855 5,68,87580
{e] Other Current Assets 219 1,25,45,604 2,08.00,516
TOTAL 1,87,32,75,507 1,.9516,13,183
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1&2 B

As per our Report of even date attached
T. Balakrishnan,

DIN: 00052922

K. Padmadasan,

Company Secretary
Place : Kochi

Date : 31/07 /2015

M.M. Abdul Basheer,
Manaaing Director Director
DIN: 00120916

Ceorge Raphael,
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Varma & Varma

Chartered Accountants

Firm No.0045325

Vijay Narayan Govind
(Partner)
Membership Mo, 203094
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INKEL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH 2015

Particulars Note No. As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
(In Rupees) (In Rupees)
I Revenue
Revenue from Operations 220 46,62,85,742 6,28,06,61
Other Income 2.2 8,42,50183 6,82.90136
Il. Total Revenue 55,05,33,925 13,10,96,747
ll. Expenses:
Cost of land acquired,/building
constructed and disposed (on Long
Term Finance Lease Agreements) 222 21,08,83,262 2,62.49107
Construction and other related expenses 9,45 .82.098 -
Employes Benefit Expense 223 214,53155 2,8552,603
Finance costs 224 5,02,3989 -
Depreciation and Amortisation 210 3.41,01,978 2.66,26.463
Qther Expenses 225 61815877 3,26,28.106
V. Total Expenses 42 3% 28,769 11,40,56,279
V. Profit Before Tax (I V) 12,71,95.157 1,70,40,468
Vi Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 3,59,79,223 1,54,02,674
(2} Deferred tax 18797129 716,735
Vil. | Profit for the period (V- V1) 7,2418,804 (20,78,939)
Vill.| Less: Share of Profit/(Loss) of Subsid-
iaries for the year transferred to
Minarity Interest (65,06,575) (40,64,520)
IX. Share of Profit/ (Loss) of Assoclate
Company (3,9517.210) (45,23,270)
A Profit / ( Loss ) for the period after
Minarity Interest %,94 08169 (25,37,689)
Xl Earning per Equity Share: 227
(1) Basic 241.73 116.83)
" (2] Diluted 24173 (16.83)
Significant Accounting Poilcies and Notes to Accounts 1&2

As per our Report of even date attached
T. Balakrishnan,
Managing Director

M.M. Abdul Basheer,
Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Varma & Varma
Chartered Accountants

DIN: 00052922 DiN: 00120916 Frm No,0045325
K. Padmadasan, George Raphael, Vijay Narayan Govind
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer (Partner)
Place : Kochi Membership No. 203034

Date : 31,/07/2015
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INKEL LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2015

NOTE - 2.1 SHARE CAPITAL {In Rupees)
' Particulars T lii As at i 1 Asat
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Number of Number of
Shares Amount Shares Amount
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
Equity Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs 10,000/-(Rs. 10,000/} Each 2,00,000 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000 | 2.00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs 10,000/-(Rs. 10,000/ -) Each 163,027 1,63,02,70,000 163,027 | 1.63,02,70,000
L. 1,653,027 1,63,02,70,000 163,027 | 1,65,02,70,000 |

Terms,/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares with a face value of Bs. 10,000/ - each. Each holder
of equity share s entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend
proposed/ declared by the Board of Directors s subject to approval/ regularisation of the shareholders' in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in propartion to the number of equity

shares held by the shargholders,
Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the financial year (In Rupees)
Particulars Number of Number of |
Shares Amount Shares Amount

Equity Shares

As at the beginning of the financial year 163,027 | 1,63,02,70,000 137566 | 1,37.56,60,000
Shares issued during the financial year - - 25,461 25.46.10,000
As at the end of the financial year 1,635,027 | 1.63,02,70,000 1,635,027 | 1,63%,02,70,000

Particulars of Shareholders holding more
than 5% share in the Company

Govt. of Kerala - 24.84 % [Previous year 24,84 %) 40,500 40,50,00,000 40,500 40,50,00,000
Bismi Holdings Ltd - 675 % (Previous year 6.75 %) 11,000 11,00,00,000 11,000 14,00,00,000
Shiri. Yusuffali M A - 1513 % (Previous year 1513 %) 24666 24,66,60,000 24,666 24,66,60,000
Shri. Varghese Kurian - 6,75 % (Previous year 6.75 %) 11,000 11,00,00,000 11,000 11,00,00,000

LDFI‘I.I'II::IE‘IEIH‘!EEI Ali - 6.44 % (Previous year 6.44 %) 10,500 ( 10,50,00,000 10,500 10,50,00,000 )
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NOTE - 2.2 RESERVES & SURPLUS

Particulars As at 31032015 As at 31-03-2014

Surplus

Opening Balance 11,67,54,993 15,45,50,333

Met Profit/(Loss) after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 5.94,08,169 (25,57.689)

Clasing Balance 15.61,63162 15,2012.644

Amount Available for Appropriation

Less: Appropriations

Proposed Dividend ( Refer Note 2.21) 4,89,08,100 3.01,36,032

Tax on Proposed Dividend 99.56,538 51,21.619
5,88,64,638 3,52,57,651

Closing balance 9,72,98,524 11,67,54,993

Less: Minority interest adjusted (as per Contra) 27.88,97 19,65,209
9,45,09,533 11,47,89,784

.

A

2.21 The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a dividend of R5.300/- per share(Rs. 200/- per share) for

the financial year 2014-15.

NOTE -2.35 MINORITY INTEREST

Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Share Capital 6.47,69,554 &,46,39 554
In case of the subsideary company INKEL- KSIDC Project Ltd.
Add: Share of accumulated reserves (90,16,632) (49,52112)
Add: Profit/(Loss) For the year transferred from Statement
of Profit and Loss (65,06,575) (40.64,520)
Add: Adjusted against majority interest (as per Contra) 27.88,991 19.65,209

\_l:lﬂsirlg Balance 5,20,35,338 5.75.8813 )

NOTE - 2.4 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
A. Deferred Tax Liability
Opening Balance
On excess of net book value over Income tax written
down value of fixed assets 2,62,61,686 70,6970
B. Deferred Tax Assets - -
On disallowances 703,788 3.,08.403

b 2,55,57.898 67 60,767

NOTE - 2.5 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Particulars As at 31052015 As at 31-03-2014
Security Deposits £7.26,240 50,735,000

57.26,240 50,73,000 J
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NOTE - 2.6 LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Annual Report
2014 - 15

| Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31032014
Provision for Employee Benefits
- Provsion for Leave Encashment (See Note 2.28) 1.50,132 19,92.020
- Provision for Gratuity (See Note 2.28) - 7.09,645
Other Long Term Provision 14,487 -
L 11,64,619 27,011,665 )
NOTE - 2.7 TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Trade Payables 115,54,225 1,79.11,898
1,15,54,225 1,791,898 |

The group has taken steps to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as
defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 and the same is in progress. Based on
available information, there are no balance outstanding as payable to such suppliers as at the year end. In the opinion of
the management of the respective companies there are no amounts pald/pavable towards interest under the said

statute.

NOTE - 2.8 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Creditors For Caplital Assets 4482170 1517049
Lease hold Premium received in Advance 70210910 5.66,68479
Advance From Customers/ Clients 23,91,550 74,61 664
Retention Money payable 48 32 824 .31,210
Statutory Dues 60,02,702 53142.561
Security Deposit / Earnest Mongy Deposit 35,01,510 31.50,824
Unclaimed Dividend 2,30,506 18,500
L 8,16,52,172 812,60,287 )
NOTE - 2.9 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Provision for employee benefits
- Provision for Leave Encashment (See Note 2.28) 14.11,845
- Provision for Cratuity (See Note 2.28) 513,046
Propased Dividend 4,89,08,100 3.01,36,032
Tax on Proposed Dividend 99,56,558 51,21,619
Provision for Income Tax 215,953
L 6,08,05,482 3.52,57,651
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Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Projects under implementation 8,31.01.054 1,22,54,705
Capital work in progress 71.534188 65,28,688
9,02,35,242 1,87,85,393
NOTE - 212 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
a) Investments in Equity Instruments
{Un-quoted, Trade, at cost)
1) In Subsidiary Companies
-Thalikkulam PURA Pvt Ltd - 85,15,000
Mil {8.51,500] Equity Shares of RsA0/-each,Fully Paid up -
-Tirurangadi PURA Pvt Ltd - 83,57.000
Nil (8,37,700) Equity Shares of BsA0/-each,Fully Paid up 2
Add: Share of Profit as per appropriation a/c -
ii} In Associate companies - -
-MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd
1,18,29,714 (118,29,714) Equity Shares of
Rs510/ -each Fully Paid up - -
Opening Balance 10,57.34,346 11.58,62 347
Less: Unrealised Profit on Consultancy Income and
Guarantee Cost (20.73,479) (57,04,731)
Less: Share of Profit/ (Loss) of Assoclate (3,95,17.210) (45,23.270)
Closing Balance 6.41,43 657 10,57.34,346
-KV Apartments Pyt Ltd 5.00,000 45,00,000
50,000 (4,50,000) Equity Shares of
Rs10/-each Fully Paid up -
b} Investments in Optionally Convertible Debentures o
{Un-quoted, Trade, at cost) - -
In Associate companies -
il {19,57.000)15% Optionally Convertible Debentures in
KV Apartments Pvt Ltd 19,57,00,000
Total investments (a) + (b) 6,46,43,657 52,28,06,346
Apgregate amount of unguoted Investments 6,46,43,657 32,28,06,346
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NOTE - 213 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31032014
Unsecured (Considered good)
Advance for Capital Assets 170,000 3,75,000
Security Deposits 52.71.9%0 15,111,109
Advance to Kerala State Industrial Enterprises Ltd towards
proposed Joint Venture Infrastructure Project 1,21,00,000 1,21,00,000
Income Tax [Net) 5,26,23,403 2,54,30,222
Advance to Related Parties
- Seguro - INKEL Consortium LLP 5,50,00,000 -

10,47,05,393 3.9416,3% y.

NOTE - 214 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31032014
Trade Receivables
(Unsecured Considered good |

-Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the
date they were due for payment = &
-0Others (See Mote no. 2441) 9.2752,268 -
Other Non-Current Assets 144,000 144,000
9,28,96,268 1,44,000 v,

b

2141 Represents dues from Kerala Acadermy for Skills Excellence{kKASE), a Covernment of Kerala owned private limited

Company inwhich a director of INKEL Ltd s a director.

NOTE - 215 INVENTORIES

Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-05-2014
Land and Building held on long term finance lease =
Opening Balance .
Add: Additions during the year 21,08,85,262 26249107
Less: Disposed during the year 21,08,83,262 2,62,4907
, Closing Balance - )
NOTE - 216 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-05-2014
Trade Receivables -
{Unsecured Considered good | -
-Outstanding for a period exceeding six manths from the
date they were due for paymeant 575,036 -
-Others 20.3312175 1,21,73.830
20,36,85,211 1,21,73,830 J

M

2161 Trade Receivables include Rs.53.82 737/- [Rs.6,58,797/-) due from MIV Logistics Private Limited and Rs.
9,27.52,267 /- (Nil) due from Kerala Academy for Skills Excellence(kASE)- a Covernment of Kerala owned private limited

compamy: Inwhich adirector of INKEL Ltd is a director,
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Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31032014
Cash on Hand 7915 13,279
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts 21,24,814 2,57.58,580
In Fixed Deposit Accounts 40,65,50,000 54.08,30,716
\_ 40,86,82,727 56,66,02,585
2171 Earmarked Balances:

a, Balance with banks in Current Accounts include earmarked balances for unpaid dividend Rs, 18,197 (Rs, 18,815) for the

FY 2009-10and Rs.2,30,948/ - (NIL) for the F Y 2013-14

217.2 Balance with banks in Deposit Accounts include Rs. 2,50,000/- (Rs, 50,000/ -) with a maturity period of more

than 12 months

NOTE - 218 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
{Unsecured, Considered good)
Loans to related parties
Thalikulam - PURA Private Ltd 2,297
Tirurangadi - PURA Private Ltd . 2,594
Seguro - INKEL Consortium LLP 555,553,612 -
Others:
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be
received 2.06,06,155 -
Earnest Money Deposits - 35,00,000
Balances with Central Excise,etc 4,54,75,769 5,25,34,769
Advance to Suppliers,/Contractors 9.53,377 10,24,920
Advance to employees 96,942 23,000
\ 12,04,85,855 5,68,87.580
NOTE - 219 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Other Current Assets
Interest Receivable 86,509,483 2,0715,481
Prepald expenses 340173 85,035
Others 35,66,058 -
1,25,45,694 2,08,00,516
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NOTE - 217 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014

Cash on Hand 7915 15,279
Balance with Banks

In Current Accounts 21,24,814 2.27,58,590

In Fixed Deposit Accounts 40,65,50,000 54,08,30,716

- 40,86,82,727 56,66,02,585 W,

2171 Earmarked Balances:

a. Balance with banks in Current Accounts include earmarked balances for unpaid dividend Rs. 18,197 (Rs. 18,815) for the

FY2009-10andRs.2,30,948/- (NIL) for the F Y 2013-14

2172 Balance with banks in Deposit Accounts include Rs. 2,50,000/- (Rs. 50,000/-) with a maturity period of more

than 12 months

NOTE - 2.18 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014

(Unsecured, Considered good)
Loans to related parties

Thalkulam - PURA Private Ltd - 2,297

Tirurangadi - PURA Private Ltd - 2,594

Seguro - INKEL Consortium LLP 5,33,55.612 -
Others:
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be
received 2,06,06155 -
Earnest Money Deposits - 35,00,000
Balances with Central Excise etc 4,54,75,769 5.23.34,769
Advance to Suppliers/Contractors 9.53,377 10,24,920
Advance to employvees 96,942 23,000

L 12,04,85,855 5,68,87.580 )
NOTE - 219 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Other Current Assets
Interest Recelvable B86,39.,485 2.0715.481
FPrepaid expenses 540173 85,035
Others 35,66,058 -
L 1,25,45,694 2,08,00,516 ]
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NOTE - 2,23

-~
Particulars

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries & Allowances {See Note 2.231)
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expense

Annual Report
2014 - 15

=
For the year ended

For the year ended
201415 201314
1,92,50,085 2.66,38,641
14,72,720 12,10,581
730,350 7.03.381
214,53,155 2,85,52,603

2.231 Includes Rs 15,34,580/ - being remuneration to the Managing Director for the perlod from 1st November 2014 to
31st March 2015, which has been provided in the accounts based on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committes at their meeting hald on 20/02/2015 and approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on
05/06/ 2015, Approval from shareholders under Companies Act 2013 is belng sought at the ensuing general meeting.

NOTE-2.24

—
Particulars

FINANCE COSTS
Interest expense

For the year ended
2014-15

5.02.399

For the year ended
201314

-

5.02,399
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[ Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
2014415 201314
OTHER EXPENSES
Project Management Services Expenses 5,268,078 6,761,972
Bad Debt Written OFf : 532181
Power & Fuel 6,054,414 1,331,502
Rent 2,778,424 2,476,892
Repairs & Maintenance 1,298,523 1,120,000
Insurance 122,934 96,418
Payment to Auditors
Statutory Audit 218,500 175,000
Tax Audit 40,000 40,000
Other Services 102,426 79,756
Reimbursement of expenses 15,210 2,310
Meeting expense 2,365,941 145,684
Sitting fee to Directors 322,500
Conslderation for Manpower services 5,220,571 4,600,051
Course expense 916,926 543,349
Advertisement & Publicity 1,784,555 2,711,459
Loss on Sale of assets 5168 97,586
Membership,/ Subscription to Professional bodies 44,776 78,680
Postages, Telephone and internet charges 900,524 985,154
Printing and Stationery 255,480 269,631
Prafessional Charges & Legal Fee 1,231,469 2,836,894
Rates & Taxes 2,795,591 1,575,360
Staff Recruitment Expense 776,540 207826
Traveling & Comnveyance 4,327800 3,307 830
Trade Investments written off 16,881,891 -
Expenditure on projects written off 3,536,551 B64.415
Hostel Running Expense 198,085
Miscellaneous Expenses 222,788 788,156
Preincorporation Expensa 674,932
Preliminary Expense 2,650,180 .
o 61,815,877 32,628,106
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MNote 2.26. Note on Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility activities
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i} Gross amount required to be spent during the year:

9.57.400

il} Amount spent during the year In cash Yet to be paid in cash
- Construction,/acquisition of any asset
- 0N purposes other than above
NOTE-2.27
. -
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
201415 201314
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit /(Loss) after tax (In Rs.) 3.94,08.169 (25,37689)
Weighted average of Equity shares of Rs10,000/-
(R=.10,000/-) each (Fully paid up) 163,027 1.,50,750
Earnings Per Equity Share | Basic and Diluted ) ( In Rs, ) 201,73 (16.83)

Mote: Continued in page 66 A- attached separate booklet
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

(In Rupees)
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.05.2015 31.03.2014
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Taxation and exceptional items 12,71,95,156 1,70,40,468
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortisation 3.41,01,978 2.66,26,463
Loss/{Profit) on sale of Assets(Net) (1.67.946) 65,297
Interest Income (8,12,76,927) (6.48.79,837)
Interest paid 5,02,399 -
Liabilities “Assets no Longer required written off 1.97,29.938 (10.89,060)
Adjustments towards minority interest 1,530,000
Conversion of fixed assets to current assets 21,08.85,262 2,62.49107
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 31.10,97.860 40,12,438
Changes in Working Capital
Adjustments for  Increase )\Decrease in
Operating Assets
Trade Receivables {18,94,37902) (22,90,8289)
Short term loans and advances (6,35,98,275) (2,26,28,914)
Other Current Assets (38,21176) 4,54,15,828
Long term Loans and Advances (5,67,60,8B81) {3,85,54,231)
Other Non Current Assets (9,27,52,268) 2,10.49,030
(80,63,70,502) 31,90,824
Adjustments for increase | Decrease )
in Operating Liabilities
Trade Payables (6,357.674) 1,67,21,998
Other Current Liabilities 1,31,26,500 (47 41,597)
Short term Provisions 17,2489 (1.41.58,379)
Long term Provisions (15,57.046) (20,29,189)
Leng Term Liabilities 6,53,240 (16,73,464)
76,0991 (58,80,631)
Cash generated from Operations (8,76,62,731) 13,22,631
Taxes Paid (4,29,56,451) (2,58,77382)
Met Cash Used in Operating activities { A ) (13,06,19,182) (2,46,54,751) |
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(In Rupees)
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31.05.2015 31.053.2014
B | CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital WIP 128,50,94,223) {6,22,97.379)
Proceeds from sale of Fixed assets 2,70166 401,623
{Investments)/Sale of Equity shares 40,00,000 (2.11.68.000)
(Investments) /Redemption of Debentures 19.57,00,000 (19.57.00.,000)
Interest received in deposits 9.55,52.925 b.48, /9,857
MNet Cash Used in Investing activities -(8) 82,28,868 (21,38,85,919)
C | CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (2.99,05,526)

Dividend distribution tax paid (51,21.619)
Interest paid (5,02,399) -
lssue of share capital 25,46,10,000
Net Cash Generated By Financing Activities- ([ C ) (3.55,29,544) 25,46,10,000
Net increase in Cash and Cash equivalents {15,79,19,858) 1,60,71,330
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 56,66,02,585 55,05,31.255
L Closing Cash And Cash Equivalents 40,86,82,727 56,66,02,585

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our Report of even date attached

For Varma & Varma

T. Balakrishnan, M.M. Abdul Basheer,

Managing Director Director Chartered Accountants
DIN: 00052922 DiN: 00120916 Firm No.00453525
K. Padmadasan, George Raphael, Vijay Narayan Govind
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer {Partner)

Membership No. 203094
Place : Kochi

Date : 31/07,/2015




ATTENDANCE SLIP

(Please complete this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the Meeting hall)
CIN: U45209KL2007PLC020471

INKEL Limited, inkel Centre, Vallathol Junction, Seaport Airport Road, Thrikkakara, Cochin — 682021,
Ph: 0484 — 6491138, Fax : 0484-2577941

| hereby record my presence at the EIGHTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of INKEL Limited
held at 11.00A.M on 26" August 2015 at Grand Hotel M G Road, Cochin.

Full name of the Member

Folio No. : No. of shares :

Name of Proxy

Member's/Proxy's Signature



PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN: U45209KL2007PLCO20471
INKEL Limited, inkel Centre, Vallathol Junction, Seaport Airport Road, Thrikkakara, Cochin — 682021,
Ph: 0484 - 6491138, Fax : 0484-2577941

Name of the member (s): E-mail Id:

Registered address: Falio Ma.

I"We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appaint:

1) of having e-mail id or failing him
21) of having e-mail id or failing him
£V B of having e-mail id or failing him

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote {on a poll) for mefus and on my/our behalf at
the 8th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, 26th August, 2015 at 11.00 a.m. at Grand
Hotel , M G Road, Cochin and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

1. Considerand adopt audited financial statements

2, Declaration of dividend on equity shares

A Reappointment of following Directors, retiring by rotation :

a) Shri Varghess Kurian Affix

b) Shri CK Menon Revenue
c) Shri Mohamed Althaf Stamp
4 Appointment of Auditors and fix their remuneration

5, Appointment of Shri M M Abdul Basheer as a Director | )
6. Approval of sub-division of shares

R Approval of alteration of capital clause of Memorandum of Association

8 Approval of alteration of capital clause of Articles of Association

9 Appointment of Mr. T Balakrishnan as Managing Director

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of first Proxy holder signature of second proxy holder signature of third proxy holder

Mote: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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Note No. 2.28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(Disclosure under Accounting Standard 15 - 'Employee Benefits', Revised 2005)
In case of the company:

2.281 Defined Contribution Plans

During the year the company has recognized Rs.7,.93,229/-(Previous Year Rs.8,91,362/-) in the Statement
of Profit and Loss on account of defined contribution plans.

2.28.2 Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity (Funded)

(i) | Actuarial Assumptions 31st March, 2015
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.00% p.a.
E:-'.pected return on plan assets 8.00% p.a.

Salary escalation rate * 5.00% p.a.
Mortality rate Indian Assured Lives
Mortality[1994-1996)
Ultimate °

.
*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

(InRs.}

(ii)| Reconciliation of present value of obligation: 31st March, 2015
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the vear 18,16,413
Current Service Cost 5,25145
Interest Cost 116,319
Actuarial (gain)/loss 111,182
Benefits Paid (2,11,510)
Curtailments -
Settlements -

L Present value of obligation at the end of the year 23,57,549 I
(In Rs.)

{iii)| Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets : 31st March, 2015
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 11,06,768
Expected return on plan assets 1,52,640
Actuarial gain/(loss) (1,08,357)
Contributions 8,094,452
Benefits paid
Assets distributed on settlement

L Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 20,44.503% .




Annual Report

INKEL Limited 2014 - 15
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“ (iv] Net (Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 1
as at year end: 31st March, 2015
Present value of obligation 23,57,549
Fair value of plan assets : in.44.5ﬂ3
Net present value of unfunded obligation recoanised
as (asset)/liability in the Balance Sheet 313,046 J

(In Rs.)
(v)| Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit

and Loss: 31st March, 2015
Current Service Cost 5,25145
Interest Cost 116,319
Expected return on plan assets (1,52,640)
Actuarial (gain) /loss recognised in the period 2,20,539
Past Service Cost I
Curtailment cost
Settlement cost
Total expenses recognised in the Statement of

g Profit and Loss 709,365

Leave Plan (Unfunded)

(M

Yo,

Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate (per annum)

Expected return on plan assets
~ Salary escalation rate *

31st March, 2015
B.00% p.a.
Mot App!i:able

Mortality rate

Mortality[1994-1996]
Ultimate

o

*The assumption of future salary increases takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand In the employment market.

(In Rs.)

(ii)| Reconciliation of present value of obligation: 31st March, 2015
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 19,92,020
Current Service Cost 7,49,057
Interest Cost 1,89,324
Actuarial (gain)/loss 33,235
Benefits Paid (511,341)
Curtailments -
Settlements -
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 24,52,295
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(In Rs.)

. (iii)| Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets : i 31st March, 2015
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year -
Expected return on plan assets

| Actuarial gain/(loss) :
Contributions -
| Benefits paid :

| Assets distributed on settlement .

. ' Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year = ]
(InRs.)

f [m‘ Net (Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet i

as at year end: 31st March, 2015
| Present value of obligation 24,52,295
Fair value of plan assets -
| Net ﬂre'sentalue of unfunded Eb-ligatlon reco:_:lm.r;r:‘l
| as (asset)/liability in the Balance Sheet 24,52,295 P
(In Rs.)
(v]| Expenses recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss: 31st March, 2015
| Current Service Cost 7,49,057
Interest Cost 1,89,324
Expected return on plan assets =
. Actuarial {gain) /loss recognised in the period 33,235
Past Service Cost =
Curtailment cost
Settlement cost -
Total expenses recognised in the Statement of
. Profit and Loss 9,71,616 )

The above disclosures are based on information certified by the independent actuary and relied upon by the
auditors. Upto the previous year, the liability was belng assessed on estimated gross undiscounted basis, since
eligible employees being small in number and hence there are no corresponding disclosures for the previous

year,
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Note -2.29

Disclosure of transactions with Related Parties as required by Accounting Standard - 18 on Related Party
Disclosures as prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

A. | Related parties and nature of relationship

i Thalikulam PURA Pt Ltd

i, Thirurangadi PURA Pvt Ltd

il MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd

v, KV Apartments Pvt Ltd

V. Seguro-INKEL Consortium LLP

vl Seguro Foundations and Structurals Pt Ltd

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Associate Company

Associate Company(till 3112.2014)
Jointly Controlled Entity

Enterprise having substantial interest in
the Jointly Controlled Entity

vil.  KSIDC Limited

viii.  Kinfra Limited

. Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. T Balakrishnan

Enterprise having substantial interest in
the Subsidiary Company - INKEL-KSIDC
Projects Limited

Enterprise having substantial interest in
the Subsidiary Company - INKEL-KINFRA
Infrastructure Projects Limited

Managing Director of the company

\_ /
B. Description of Transactions
f’r MNature of Transaction Subsidiary | Enterprise | Enterprise | Key Managerial Total \".
Company/ having having Personnel
Associate | substantial | substantial
Company/ | interestin interest
Jointly the jointly inthe
controlled | controlled subsidiary
entity entity company
Income
| Income:
Project Management Services
MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd 52,58,654 52,58,634
(1,09,67.997) (1,09,67,997)
Gurantee Commission Received
MIV Loagistics Pyt Ltd . .
(35,00,000) {35,00,000)
2 Interest income from Loans/
Debentures
KV Apartments Private Limited 2,66,56,479 2,66,56,479
(52,36,973) 152,36,973)
Seguro-INKEL Consortium LLP 49.21,085 49,21,085
(=) (=)
Thalikulam PURA Pvt Ltd - -
(2,27.998) (2,27998)
Thirurangadi PURA Pvt Ltd - -
l\ 2,21,153) -:1'.?'1:1551)
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Nature of Transaction Subsidiary | Enterprise Enterprise | Key Managerial Total
Company/ having having Personnel
Associate | substantial | substantial
Company/ | interestin interest
Jointly the jointly in the
controlled | controlled subsidiary
entity entity company
Expensas
1 Remuneration to Managing
Director [ See Note 2.23.1) 36,34,580 26,34,580
(1,01,00,000) | (1,01,00,000)
2 | Sub Contract Expenses
Seguro Foundations and
Structurals Pvt Ltd 19,27 43,976 19,27.43,976
(-] (-]
Loans/Advances and
Investments
1 Sale of shares in the Company 40,000,000 40,000,000
) ()
2 Seguro-INKEL Consortium LLP
Loan given 19,25,77.591 19.25,77.591
(=) {=)
3 Thalikulam PURA Pvt Ltd
- Loan/ Advances given 2,900 2,900
(-] (-
- Loan,/ Advances written off 597 5197
(] (-]
- Imvestments made . .
(2,41,300) (8.41,300)
- Investments written off B5,15,000 85,15,000
{-) (-]
4 Thirurangadi PURA Pyt Ltd
- Loan/Advances given 2,100 2,100
{-) {-)
- Loan,/Advances written off 4,694 4,694
-} -
- Imvestmeants made - -
(82.55,000) (82,55,000)
- Investments written off 83,57.000 83,57.000
{-) {-)
Investments
1 KV Apartments Pyt Ltd 5.00.000 500,000
{20,02,00,000) (20,02,00,000)
2 MIV Logistics Pyt Ltd 11,82,97.140 11,82,97.140
{11.82.97140) {11,82,97140)
3 Thalikulam PURA Pyt Ltd - E
(85,15,000) (85,15,000)
a4 Tirurangadi PURA Pyt Ltd - -
(B83,57,000) (83,57,000)
5 Segura-INKEL Consortium LLP 34,40,268 %4.40,268
(including share of profit) (-) (=)




Annual Report

2014 - 15

INKEL Limited
/| Nature of Transaction Subsidiary | Enterprise | Enterprise
Company/ having having
Associate | substantial | substantial
Company/ | Interestin interest
Jointly the jointly in the
controlled | controlled | subsidiary
entity entity company
Guarantee given
1 MIV Logistics Pt Ltd 45,50,00,000 45,50,00,000
(45,50,00,000) {45,50,00,000)
Receivables
1 MIV Logistics Pwt Ltd 53.82,737 53,82.737
(6,58,797) {6,58,797)
2 Thalikulam PURA Pyt Ltd - .
(2,297) [2,297)
3 Tirurangad| PURA Pvt Ltd - :
(2,594) {2,594)
4 Seguro-iNKEL Consortium LLP 19,70,06,567 19,70,06,567
(-] (=)
5 KSIDC Ltd 32,78,538 32,78.538
(-] {-)
6 KINFRA Ltd 1,44,000 1,44,000
'\ (1.44,000) (1,44,000) j,J

Mote: 1.Transactions in the nature of current account transactions have not been included
2. Transactions with the Jointly Controlled Entity are prior to elimination

Note- 2.30
In case of the company and its subsidiaries and its associate and jointly controlied entity:

The companies are engaged in providing infrastructure facilities and other services in connection with
infrastructure projects. In the opinion of the management, this is the only primary reportable segment within
the meaning of Accounting Standard-17 notified by the Companies (Accounting
Standards)Rules,2006.

Note - 2.51
In case of the subsidiary company INKEL-KINFRA Infrastructure Projects Limited:

The company has entered agreement with KINFEA as per Govt Order No, 1176/2009/1D dt 31-08-09 for
developing of 3.37 acres of land at Vellayil and 85 acres at Ramanattukara under long term lease for 90
yvears. Pending execution of the agreements till date no lease premium is amortised during the period
under review.

In case of the subsidiary company INKES Trade Centre Limited:

The company has entered agreement with KSIE Ltd for developing of land at Thampanoor, Pending execution
of the agreements no lease premium is amortised during the period under review.
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Note - 2.32

Contingent Liabilities not provided for : As at 31.03.2015(Rs) | As at 31.03.2014 (Rs)
In case of the Company

"2.321 Corporate guarantee issued in favour of
Associate Company MIV Logistics Pvt Ltd- Amount
Outstanding 35,57.30,812 24,93.13,652

total amount of guarantee- Rs. 45,50,00,000
(Rs.45,50,00,000)"

2.32.2 Claims towards Building Tax 28,555,835 35,1200

In case of the subsidiary company
INKEL - KSIDC Project Ltd.

2.32.3 The Company has entered into lease agreement
with Kerala State Industrial Development Corporation
(KSIDC ) one of the promoters, for taking on long term
lease 1214 Hectares of Land at Angamaly and the deed
was registered on 30th August 2010 and 100.68 Hectares
of Land at Malappuram registered on 2nd September
2010,in respect of which an Irrevocable unconditional Bank 8,05,00,000 8,05,00,000
Guarantee had tobe fumnished to KSIDC for the balance
lease premium of Rs.3218.98 lakh. This is yvet to be
furnished as the matter is under negotiation with KSIDC.
Contingent liability not provided for amounts to Rs, B05
lakh as at the close of the year ( previous year Rs.B805
lakh), on account of interest as per the lease agreement
not provided in the books for the unpaid balance lease
premium, as the matter is under renegotiation by the
\_management with KSIDC and a waiver is expected. Y

Note No 2.33 Additional information as required by paragraph 2 of the Ceneral instructions For Preparation of
Consolidated Financlal Statements to Schedule lll to the Companies Act,2013.

4 Name of the entity For the year ended 31.03.2015 For the year ended 31.03.2074 \‘
Met Assets, le Total Assets - Net Assets, ie Total Assets -
Total liabilities Total liabiiities
As a % of consolidated Amount - Rs As a % of consolidated Amount - Rs
net assets net assets
Parent Company 93.45% 1,66,04,89,074 89.89% 1,62,05,55,423
Subsidiaries:
INEEL KSIDC Projects Limited 8.35% 14.83,42,991 911% 16,41.47 096
INEEL KINFEA Infrastructure
Projects Limited (0.53%) [93,45,291) {0.31%) (55,93,289)
INKES Trade Centre Ltd (012%) (21,57.590]
Jointly Controlled Entity:
SECGURO-INEEL Consortium
LLP 019% 34,40,268
Minority Interest ‘135% _t_2.59.5f{._58_2_]_ 152‘?& 2 ._3?._5_0_,@85
.antaI 100.00% 1,77,68,14,871 100.00% 1,80,26,47.915 4
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i Name of the entity For the year ended 31.03.2015 For the year ended 31.03.2014 A
Share in Profit or (Loss) Share In Profit or (Loss)
As a % of consolidated Amount-Rs | As a % of consolidated| Amount - Rs
Profit or (Loss) Profit or (Loss)
Parent Company 260.94% 10,28,30,557 (1509.86%) 3,83,15,606
Subsidiaries:
INKEL KSIDC Projects Limited {40.0%) {1,58,04,105) 464.08% (1,17,76,900)
INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure
Projects Limited {9,52%) (37,52,002) 4405 (1,04,007)
INKES Trade Centre Ltd (6.41%:) (25,27,590) 0.00%
Jointly Controlled Entity;
SEGUROD-INKEL Consortium LLP| 7.59% 29,90,268 0.00% -
Minority Interest (112.49%) (4,45,28,959 1141.68% (2 89,72 388)
\ Total 100.00% 5,94,08,169 100.00% (25,37,689) /
Note - 2.34
" Capital Commitments As at 31.03.2015(Rs) | As at 31.03.2014 (Rs)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be J
executed on capital account and not provided for 899,685,212 -
Note - 2.35
“ Dividend Remittances in foreign currency: For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2015(Rs) 31.03.2014(Rs)
Year to which dividend relates Financial year 2013-2014 -
Amount remitted during the year 44,000,000
Number of non resident shareholders 4 -
Number of shares on which dividend was due 22,000

Note-2.36

Figures have been rounded of f to the nearest rupee. Previous year figures unless otherwise stated are given
within brackets and have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary.

T. Balakrishnan, M.M. Abdul Basheer,

Manaaging Director Director

DiN: 00052922 DIN: 00120916

K. Padmadasan, George Raphael,
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place : Kochi

Date : 31/07/2015

For Varma & Varma
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.0045325

Vijay Narayan Govind
{Partner)
Membership Mo, 203094
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1LSIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate INKEL

Limited (the 'Company'), its subsidiary companies, v,
jointly controlled entity and the Group's share of

profit / loss in its associate company. The
consolidated financial statements have been

prepared on the following basis:

. The financial statements / financial
information of the subsidiary companies,
Jjointly controlled entity and associate company
used in the consolidation are drawn upto the
same reporting date as that of the Company,
i.e,, 31 March, 2015.

ii. The financial statements of the Company and V.

its subsidiary companies have been combined
on a line-by-line basis by adding together like
items of assets, liabilities, Income and
expenses, after eliminating intra-group
balances, intra-group transactions and
resulting unrealised profits or losses, unless
cost cannot be recovered, as per AS 21
'‘Consolidated Financial Statements'.

iil. The consolidated financial statements include
the share of profit / loss of an associate entity
which has been accounted for using 'equity
method' as per AS 23 'Accounting for Vi
Investments in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements'. Accordingly, the share of
profit / loss of the associate entity (the loss
being restricted to the cost of investment) has

INKEL Limited

been added to / deducted from the cost of
investrment.

Share of profit / loss, assets and liabilities in the
jointly controlled entity, which are not
subsidiaries, have been consolidated on a
proportionate basis by considering the book
values of like items of assets, liabilities, incomes
and expenses to the extent of the Croup's
eguity interest in such entity as per AS 27
'Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint
Ventures', The intra-group balances, Intra-
group transactions and unrealised profits or
losses have been eliminated to the extent of
the Croup's sharein the entity.

Minority interest in the net assets of the
conseolidated subsidiaries consist of the
amount of equity attributable to the minority
shareholders at the date on which investments
in the subsidiary companies were made and
further movements in their share in the equity,
subseqguent to the dates of investments. Net
profit / loss for the year of the subsidiaries
attributable to minority interest is identified
and adjusted against the profit after tax of the
Group in order to arrive at the income
attributable toshareholders of the Company.

Following subsidiary companies, associate
company and Jointly controlled entity have
been considered in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

( Name of the entity Relationship % of Holding and voting power either '
| directly or indirectly through
subsidiary as at
31 March, 2015 31 March, 2014
INKEL KSIDC Projects Limited Subsidiary Company 4% 4%
INKEL KINFRA Infrastructure
Projects Limited Subsidiary Company 4% 4%
INKES Trade Centre Limited Subsidiary Company 745,
SECURD - INKEL Consortium LLP Jointly Controlled Entity A45%
L MIV Logistic Private Limited Associate Company 38.43% 39.43% it

vil. The consolidated financlal statements have
been prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other eventsin

similar circumstances and are presented to the
extent possible, in the same manner as the
Company's separate financial statements.
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b. Basisof Preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Inkel
Limited (the Company] and its subsidiaries
INKEL=-KINFEA Infrastructure Frojects Limited,
INKEL-KSIDC Projects Limited and INKES Trade
Centre Limited collectively referred to as the
'aroup’ and its associate MIV Logistics Private
Limited and jointly controlied entity Seguro-INKEL
Consortium LLP have been prepared in accordance
with Accounting Standard - 21 (AS 21),
"Consolidated Financial Statements”, Accounting
Standard - 23 (AS 23) "Accounting for Investments
in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements”
and Accounting Standard - 27 (AS 27) “Financial
Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures® notified
EE E::F?E Companies [Accounting Standards) Rules,

During the year the company has written off the
book value of investments made in earlier years in
the subsidiary companies Thalikulam PURA Private
Limited and in Thirurangadi PURA Private Limited as
these companies have not commenced any
commercial activities and there are no plans for
revival, Neither of these companies has any
significant assets or liabilities. Further, the
company has also disposed the shareholding in an
associate enterprise K.V, Apartments Private
Limited, which was held only for a period of nine
months. In view of the provisions of Accounting
Standard -21 on Consolidated Financial Statements
and Accounting Standard-23 on Accounting for
Investments in Associates, these entities have
been excluded for the purpose of consolidation,
the effect of which is not material.

c. Basisof Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in India
(Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these
consolidated financial statements to comply in all
material respects with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on an accrual basis and under the
historical cost convention. The accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of consolidated
financial statements are consistent with those of
previous year.

d. UseofEstimates

The presentation of conseclidated financial
statements in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles reguire estimates
and assumptions to be made that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities (including
contingent liabilities if any) as on the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during
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the reporting period. Difference between the
actual result and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known
/materialized,

e. FixedAssets
In case of the company and its subsidiaries:

Land acquired on long term lease arrangements
that are in the nature of financial leases are
classified under Fixed Assets and amortised over
the lease period. Buildings constructed on such
land are capitalised and depreciated as per
company's accounting policy. Such land and
building are reclassified and treated as Current
Assets (at Net Book Value) when the decision to
dispose under long-term finance leases Is
conclusively taken by the management.

Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition,
which includes taxes, duties, freight and other
incidental expenses incurred for bringing the
assets to the working condition reguired for their
intended use, less depreciation and impairment in
valueif any, is adjusted.

In case of the associate company MIV Logistics
Private Limited:

Land acquired on long term lease arrangements
that are in the nature of financial leases are
classified under Fixed Assets and amortised over
the lease period. Such land and building are
reclassified and treated as under Current Assets
{at Net Book Value) when the decision to dispose
under long-term finance leases is conclusively
taken by the management.

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition till the
date of instaliation of the assets and improvement
thereon. Expenses incurred directly to the cost of
assets were allocated to specific fixed assets and
pre incorporation costs and costs which are not
specifically identifiable to a particular assets were
allocated to all assets in the ratio of costs standing
under each assets as on 31.03.2015.

f. Project Development Expense

In case of the subsidiary INKES Trade Centre
Limited and INKEL-KINFRA Infrastructure
Projects Limited

Expense incurred in connection with Project
Development are treated as project development
expense pending capitalisation/ adjustment.
These expenses are shown under capital work in
progress.

g. Depreciation/Amortization
In case of the company:

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Written
Dawn Value Method on the basis of the useful life in
the manner prescribed as per the Schedulell of The
Companies Act, 2013.
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Leasehold land is amortised over the duration of
the lease.

Cost of software treated as Intangible Assets is
amortised over a period of six years,

In case of the subsidiary INKEL-KSIDC Project
Limited:

Depreciation on all assets is charged from the date
when the fixed assets are ready for their intended
use and up to the month of disposal

Depreciation is provided on written down value
basis as per the useful lives prescribed in Schedule ||
of the Companies Act 2013.

In case of the subsidiary INKES Trade Centre
Limited:

Depreciation on the Fixed Assets will be provided
on written down wvalue method at the rates
specified under Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
2013 as amended from time to time.

In case of the subsidiary INKEL-KINFRA
Infrastructure Projects Limited:

Depreciation on fixed assets as and when added will
be provided in accordance with the Provisions of
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

In case of the associate company MIV Logistics
Private Limited:

Depreciation on all assets is charged from the date
when the fixed assets are ready for their intended
use and up to the month of disposal,

Depreciation s provided on written down value
basis as per the useful lives prescribed in Schedule I
of the Companies Act 2013 except in the case of
Building , in whose case the useful lives has been
assessed lower than the life prescribed in schedule
I to the Companies Act, 2013. The difference in
useful life is due to the fact that land is acquired on
Lease basis for 30 years from Cochin Port Trust and
hence remaining useful life only considered for
Building

Grant received during the year by the associate
company amounting to Rs. 5 crores under ASIDE
scheme of the Government of India were
deducted from the total cost of eligible assets viz.
ware house bullding and Container vard in
proportion to the value standing on the datein the
books of the company and depreciation charged
on the net value as per Accounting Standard 12
"Accounting for Covernment Crants" prescribed by
g'a% ECcmnanies (Accounting Standards) Rules,

h. Government Grants

In case of Jointly controlled entity SEGURO-
INKEL Consortium LLP:

Grants and subsidies from the government are

INKEL Limited

recognised when there is reasonable assurance
that (i} the LLP will comply with the conditions
attached to them, and (i) the grant/subsidy is
received, will be received.

i. Investments

Mon-Current Investments are stated at cost
Decline in value, if any, which Is not considered
temporary innature, is provided for.

j. Revenue Recognition
In case of the company and its subsidiaries:

Revenue arising on disposal of current assets under
long-term lease arrangements that are in nature of
financial leases is recognised in the year in which
the lease agreements are entered into.

Proportionate income during the period of license
agreement and income from other arrangements
which are in the nature of operating leases, are
recognized as income in the respective years.

Other incomes are recognized on accrual basis
except when there are significant uncertainties.

In case of the associate company MIV Logistics
Private Limited:

Revenue from service is recognized as and when
services are rendered and related costs are
incurred in accordance with terms of the
contractual arrangement.

Interest Income is accounted on accrual basis.

In case of jointly controlled entity SEGURO-
INKEL Consortium LLP:

Fevenue is recognized based on percentage of
completion method inaccordance with Accounting
Standard- 7 "Construction Contracts”. Contract
revenue is recognized only to the extent of costs
incurred that are expected to be recovered and
where the outcome of the contract cannot be
estimated reliably, no profit is recognized.

k. Employee Benefits

In case of the subsidiary companies INKES Trade
Centre Limited, INKEL-KINFRA Infrastructure
Limited and jointly controlled entity SEGURO-
INKEL Consortium LLP:

Employee benefits are not provided as the
companies donot have direct employees.

In case of the company and its subsidiaries and
associate company:

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve
manths of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits and recognized in
the period in which the employee renders the
related service,
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Defined Contribution Plans

The companies have defined contribution plans for
employees comprising of Provident Fund, The
contributions paid/payable to these plans during
the wear are charged to the Consclidated
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

Defined Benefit Plans: Gratuity (Funded)
In case of the company:

The company makes contributions to the
Employee's Croup Cratuity-cum-Life Assurance
Scheme of the Life Insurance Corporation of India.
The net present value of the obligation for gratuity
benefits as determined on independent actuarial
valuation conducted annually using the projected
unit credit method, as adjusted for unrecognised
past services cost, if any, and as reduced by the fair
value of plan assets, Is recognised in the accounts.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in
which they accur,

In case of the subsidiaries and associate
company:

The company makes contributions to the
Employee's Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance
Scheme of the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Other Long term employee benefits:
Compensated absences (Unfunded)

In case of the company:

The company has a scheme for compensated
absences for employees, the liability of which is
determined on the basis of an independent
actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the
year. Actuarial gains and losses are recoanised in
full in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
period in which they occur,

L Income Tax

Income tax is accounted In accordance with
Accounting Standard on Accounting for Taxes on
Income (AS-22), which includes current taxes and
deferred taxes. Deferred Tax assets/ liabilities
representing timing differences between
accounting income and taxable income are
recognised to the extent considered capable of
being reversed in subseguent years. Deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available, except that deferred tax
assets arising due to unabsorbed depreciation and
losses are recoanised if there is a virtual certainty
that sufficient future taxable income will be
gvailable torealise the same.

m. ForeignCurrency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at
the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
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outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are
translated at the applicable exchange rates
prevailing at the year-end. The exchange gain/loss
arising during the year is adjusted to the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

n. BorrowingCosts

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use are capitalised. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as expenditure for
the period in which they are incurred.

0. Earnings pershare

Basic,/ diluted eamnings per share is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the vyear
attributable to eguity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares/ dilutive
potential equity shares outstanding as at the end
of the year as the case may be.

p. Preliminary Expenses

In case of the subsidiary INKES Trade Centre
Limited:

Preliminary expenses and pre-incorporation
expenses are fully written off.

q. Impairment of Assets

The company assesses at each Balance Sheet date
whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. An asset is identified as impaired,
when the carrying value of the asset exceeds its
recoverable value. Based on such assessment,
impairment loss if any is recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the
period in which the asset is identified as impaired.
The impairment loss recognised in the prior
accounting periods is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

r. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the company has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, for
which it is probable that a cash outflow will be
required and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Prowisions are not
discounted to its present value and are determined
based on management estimate required to settle
the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted
torefiect the correct management estimates.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when the
company has a possible obligation or a present
obligation and it is probable that a cash flow will not
be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the accounts.
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